
Co MARK BLANKf NSHIP 
ATTORNEY-AT-LAW 

309 Nor th  4 h  Street 
Murray, ICentucky 42071 

(270) 759-3954 Phone . (270) 759-3955 Fax 
email: blanltlaw@~nurray-l<y.net 

September 14, 2006 

Ms. Beth O'Donnell 
Executive Director 
Public Service Commission 
21 1 Sower Blvd. 
P.O. Box 615 
Frankfort, KY 40602-061 5 

RE: Flint & West Fork Road Project No. WX21035012 

Dear Ms. O'Donnell: 

I represent the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District. 

The fo!lowing information is given pursuant to the filing requirements checklist of 
your website. 

1. The full name and post office address of the applicant and the reference to the 
particular provision of law requiring Commission approval is as follows: 

Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, P.O. Box 55, Almo, KY 42020, 270-753-91 01, 
a water district organized pursuant to KRS Chapter 74 ... applicable statutes KRS 
278.020(1): administrative regulation 807 KAR 5: 001, Section 9(3). 

2. The original and ten copies of the application with an additional copy for each party 
named therein as an interested party: 

Ten copies of this application are attached. 

3. If applicant is a corporation, a certified copy of the Articles of Incorporation and all 
amendments thereto or if the Articles were filed with the PSC in a prior proceeding, 
a reference to the style and case number of the prior proceeding: 

The Dexter-Almo Heights Water District is a de jure water district, situated wholly 
in Calloway County, Kentucky, and exists by virtue of a judgment and order of the 
Calloway County Fiscal Court. The project number for this extension is 
WX21035012. The sales and use tax permit for Dexter-Almo Heights Water 
District is account number 121 369. A copy of the original preliminary report for the 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District of Calloway County, Kentucky dated August 6, 
1963 was filed in your Case No. 2005-00456 



4. The facts relied upon to show that the proposed new construction is or will be 
required by public convenience or necessity: 

The Coles Campground Road extension project is an area where currently there is 
no water service or water lines available. In addition, there are no other water 
districts that can provide water lines at these locations. A copy of the Coles 
Campground water main extension preliminary engineering report dated June, 
2006 is attached hereto as Exhibit " A  and incorporated herein by reference. 

5. Copies of franchises or permits, if any, from the property public authority for the 
proposed new construction or extension, if not previously filed with the 
Commission: 

See Exhibit "B" attached hereto, Kentucky Water Project Profile and Exhibit "C" 
letter from the Governor's Office for Local Development. Also see documentation 
filed in your Case No. 2005-00456. Refer to your Case No. 2005-00456 for 
previously filed documentation 

6. A full description of the proposed location, route, or routes of the new construction 
or extension, including a description of the manner in which same will be 
constructed, and also the names of all public utilities, corporations, or persons with 
whom the proposed new construction or extension is likely to compete. 

See Exhibit "D" Project Specifications dated July 31, 2006, also see Exhibit "A ,  
preliminary engineering report dated June 2006 prepared by Susan Oatman, 
professional engineer, 133 Pine Creek Drive, Paducah, KY 42001. In addition, 
there are no other water districts in these areas with whom the water district will be 
competing. 

7. Three (3) maps to suitable scale (preferably not more than two (2) miles per inch) 
showing the location or route of the proposed new construction or extension, as 
well as the location to scale of any like facilities owned by others located anywhere 
within the map area with adequate identification as to the ownership of such other 
facilities. 

See attached Exhibits "En and "F" with the proposed project indicated. 

8. The manner, in detail, in which it is proposed to finance the new construction or 
extension. 

Dexter-Alma Heights Water District will finance the proposed project with grants in 
the amount of $92,000 and $41,462 from Kentucky Infrastructure Authority and a 
loan of $89,075 from a local bank, The Murray Bank of Calloway County, 
Kentucky. The district plans a goal of paying it in full within two (2) years. The note 
will be a line of credit with a maturity date of fifteen years. The water district does 
not intend to increase its' rates for water service and believes the debt can be 
properly serviced through existing rates with new customers. See Exhibit "G", 
Estimated Project Costs, Exhibit "H", Grant Assistance Agreement and Exhibit "I", 
letter from KIA regarding Grant award attached hereto 



9. An estimated cost of operation after the proposed facilities are completed. 

The district does not anticipate any additional cost of operation after the proposed 
facilities are completed. The cost of operation as reflected in the financial 
statement of the water district dated December 31, 2005 is attached hereto as 
Exhibit "J". The district plans to payoff the current debt reflected on this financial 
statement within two (2) years. 

10. Engineering plans, specifications, plats and report for the proposed construction. 

See Exhibits "Dl' and " A .  

Sincerely, 

f m d  
C. Mark Blankenship 
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1. Introduction 

The Dexter-Almo Water District currently serves appraxiinately 644 custo~ners 

in the Dexter-Almo area of Calloway County. Citizens outside the frame of the 

current service area have reported a low quality of well water and have petitioned 

the Dexter-Almo Water District to extend their services. One of the lowest quality 

of well water that has been reported is along Coles Cainpground Road. Therefore, 

the focus of this report is on the Coles Campground area. 

TI. The Existing System 

The Dexter-Almo Water District purchases water from the City of Murray and 

is served from the city's US Highway 641 N elevated storage tank. 

The existing system terminates on Coles Campground Road in the area of 

White Eagle Subdivision. There is an 8 inch AC pipe on the north side of Coles 

Campground Road just west of the intersection of White Eagle Drive. 

111. Current Needs 

There have been many requests for the Dexter-Almo Water District to extend 

their existing system and provide additional services. The area of Coles Campground 

Road seems to be in more need of a good domestic water system as there have been 

numerous reports of poor water quality and quantity in that area. The Dexter-Almo 

Water District has therefore deemed it necessary to extend an 8 inch water main along 

Coles Cainpground Road. 

This extension will immediately add approximately SO customers to the 

system. 

The Dexter-Almo Water District is in the process of seeking easements to 

construct portions of the water main on private property. They are also seeking 

approval from the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet to construct portions on the right- 

of-way. So there would be no requirement for property acquisition. 



IV. Recommended Improvements 

Rased on the current needs for clean drinlung water in the area of Coles 

Campground Road, and since the Dexter-Alino Water District has facilities in the 

area, it is recoininended that the Water District extend a 8 inch PVC water main 

approximately 2,700 linear feet to the west along Coles Campground Road from 

Brim Road west to the Mallory Drive Subdivision. The size of the water main 

should be reduced as required as demand decreases. Approximately 1,600 If of 4 inch 

main should be extended into the Mallory Drive Subdivision. It is also recorninended 

that 4,000 If of 8 inch water main be extended south along Brinn Road in order to 

make future interconnection to the City of Murray system. This future 

interconnection would provide a redundant source of water. 

V. Cost Estimate 

Estimated project costs are as follows: 

a. Ad~ninistration'~ 
b. Legal fees* 
c. Land, appraisals, easements, row* 
d. Relocation expenses* 
e. Planning* 
f. Environmental review* 
g. Engineering fees 

Preliminary* . 

Design* 
Construction* 
Inspection* 

Total Engineering fees* 

h. Construction costs 
For Water Projects 
Source* 
Treahnent* 
Distribution* 
Storage* 
Water Total* 

i. Equipment* 
j . Contingency* 
k. Interim Financing* 



1. Other* 
Total Estimated Project Costs $18 1,075 
Total Estimated Funding froin 424 form $133,462 

Estimated Project Revenue: 
LOCAL FUNDING COMMITMENTS: * *Fund S0urc.e Amount($) 47,6 13 

The projected annual revenue from the project totals $ 12,600 (50 new 
customers x $21/ma x 12). Therefore, if a low interest loan is necessary to obtain the 
additional $47,613, the additional revenue will adequately service the debt. 

VI. Project Schedule 

Task Date 

Environmental Review 
DOW approval of Plans and Specifications 
Rid Advertising 
Rid Opening 
PSC Approval 
Construction Contract Award 
Construction State 
Initiation of Operation 
Construction Completion 
Project Closeout 

July 27,2006 
August 18,2006 
August 3,2006 
August 24,2006 

September 1,2006 

September 1 1, 2006 
November 1 1,2006 

, December 1 1,2006 
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KENTUCKY 
WATER 

PROJECT PROFELE 

Araas lndlcated with (*I are required flews. 

1.* Proieet Title (use title whJ-c,ij will be-identifiable bv local communilty)::. 
ICOLES CAMPGROUND ROAD EXTENSION AND ADRXTI;ONAL INTERCONNECTION WITH M W R ~ Y  

2.. p~akct Description; 
Provide a brief narmtive denoting if project relates to source, distribution, treatment, storage 
'PHIS PROJECT WILL EXTEND A RATERLINE DOWN COLES CAMPGROUND ROAD EA5T AND hTEST 
OF THE INTERSECTION WITH BRXNN R W .  IN ADDITION, IT WSLL EXTEND WATERLINE 
W W N  BRINN ROAD TO INTERCONNECT WITH THE MURRAY WATER SYSTEM TO SUPPLEPENT 
DEXTER-hLMO WATER DISTRICT'S CURFGZNT WATER SUPPLY. DEXTER-ALMO WATER DISTRICT 
CURRENTLY BUYS WATER FROM MWRFCAY VIA ONE INTERCONNECTION. TI.llS PROJECT WILL 
PREVENT A LOBS OF WATER SERVICE IN THE CASE OF A MAIN BREAK NEAR THE CURRENT 
INTERCONNECTION. ALSO, THIS EXTENSION WILL BOOST PRESSURE AND INCREASE FLOW 
TO PARTS OF T9E SYSTEM TBAT ARE WEST OF US-641. 

t P r o j m  Descriptor; WATERLINE EXTENSION; INTERCONNECTION 
, . . " - . . .-- -.."-."-. - * - - .  -. . 

* WRIS Project Number (PNUM): [!~21?3501.2 i 

?%is number is assigned by an ADD through the respective Area Water Management Plannlng COurlcil Once tho project prOfi 
by the Councll. Thls number P~M tach project to mmnpped/tpotial informeltion in the Water Resource Information System (M 
pr0flle3 without this l l u m b ~ r  AND the rewired corresponding mappcd/spati information wlll NOT be accepted, 

Calloway iz * Project county: I - . - . . ! A  
Is it a multi-county project: Yes No 

Purchase project submitted BY; -yj !;q 

* Select the PWSID# ffmm the Iist below: 

Available: 
L 

* Legel Applicant: EXTER-ALMO HETGliTS WATER DISTRICT 
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Consulting Engineer Hnformatierin 

* First Name: 1 , , , . . , , .  1 i M.1.: p ............ " 4  ' Last r4ame: I ....... * . . . . . . . .  

Street Address Line 1: f 1 

........ ..-._.,... ..... .................... ... .*.---. .....-........ ..... "i 

: street Address Line 2: I." .-............... ...-...--..... "*." ...",--.+. " ,._" --..* *-** ,.--.-.-* ----: 
i 

P I Q *  B m :  I ........... 2 

i state: Zip: I . . . . . . . . .  , ........ ciw: 7 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . - . . I  

county: 1 ",. . .  - .  

i Ext: * Telephone: I.." ................... ........ 

Fax: L .-.--... . ..~-.-.,....-.-.,.,,*- i 
Emaii: I ...........................I.... .. .............. ......... ......I...... I . l l l , , , *  .,.,,,." .... ...",..,.&,8, L,.. "l.tL -....-.. ..-.1"1.".. -.-." 

4.* Broiect TLDP Batleast one reau[lr@d/check a11 that a p e 8 0  
P Planning 
F besign 

Construction 
F" Management 

5. Project WIPernaeiwcs: Pllease list a mllnilmgsrn of three: 
an* EXTEND WATERLINE DOWN BRINN ROAD TO INTERCONNECT WITH MURRAY ONLY. L . , l i l  

,,*.$ 

-.. ......- _-.*.._. _.,.-. _ ..._.__ ..... " ....._... " * X * - " "  .-.-.----,.. -." .....-.. ....... ,.--. ..-.-- - :it% .._......... . ...... ...... . "..I. . 
b. * 4 

.-. -*. - -.- " .. " . . 
C. + 

...... ._ ................. .._- "... . ...*., -1  . . . . . .  . _  . . . .  

6. ~&6hp~$L(,s.}-o.f.~r.oposed Water Project: r E -  1615 undersewed household! a * *  m w  service/improve sxrvice to .- ..-....*.. ........ ; unserved ................. ,.,,&,,, .., 

b. Number of new jobs: Number of retained jobs: 
c. Other beneficial technical, managerial, fiscal impacts;; (20 wards or less) 
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d.* Does proposed actlvlty relate to public health protection emergency; 6 Yes 8 No 

e.* Does project involve reglonalfzation: Yes Ct No 

f. Number of systems affected/involved: 12 
f .  r &dJ.a.p~-C9a.u.sehold Xlpgop?$gf Service Area: 

$- <",..,. as- .  - 4 .  .., 

8.. Pro_ieJX~t.hfi$-Schedule: 
@ Yearg 0-2 C. Years 3-10 G Years 11-20 

8. mimar-@dFunding Sourceq: 
Estimated Local Funding Amount $ 

* Estimated Other Funding Amount (all sources) $ 

Total Ehtlrnated Project Cost $ p r !  
PO. Prcrafect Data - WVslaa~~~C$3-~pi ,@tB all items-which appIv to veur DtWie~tl 

a=* Is project related to  source protection? f? Yes No 
Drinking Water Facilities 
br IS project related to source? @Yes C No 

Number of new surface/spring sources Tobl MGD /O_ 
Number of new wells 1- Total MGD [O 
Elimination 02 ISublHc Water Systems through Mergers 

Number of systems serving 500 or fewer population 

IF;-; Number of systems serving 501-3,000 population 

Number of systems servlng 3,001-10,000 population 

F- Number of systems serving 10,001 or greater population 

Number of water treatment plants eliminated *--..--...I 

Number of supplemental potable water supply .--- "d 

Number of emergency backup potable water supply 
Scrurtce Water Quantity and Quality [z Number of existing raw water sources replaced 

lri Number of existing mw water sources supplemented 
Briefly describe why the above items apply to your project: 
IDEXTEII-uo WATER DISTRICT CURRENTLY BUYS WATER FROM MUMY THRU ONE 
INTERCONNECTION. THIS ADDITIONAT TNTERCONNECTIOL'J WILL PREVENT AN (i-3. ;p 
INTERRUPTION OP SEriVTCE FROM A MAIN BFGAK OR OTHER DISASTER NEAR TKE :::% 
CURRENT INTERCONNECTSON. ,:$ ."..." ...l -. ... " _ ".I.- -.. -.-.-." . . 1 1  " 1  -1 . - --." .....- ... 1.1 ..--- *-,." .-.-. .- ... - . , .,1,~1,1,. . . . . . , " ...l .-.. - ..-.. . . . I  .-. JA d 3 
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Is project reheed to water treatment? fi Yes @ No 
dm* Is projeet related to distrlbutlan (Extcansian/Rehab)? 16) Yes 0 No 

Check all that apply to your project 

@ Extension E Water Tank 

/? Rehab/Improvernent n Pump Station 
Propcusesl project i ra~~~lves conestrucfion of line 
Total linear feet p- i f  new line 

tine Size (in inches) 2 p3 n4 C 6 R 8 r 10 r greater than 1 

Material Ductile Iron WC r PE Other [ . . . -  
Project zlctlvky improves pressure, as a resuit: of 
Replacement of /d total linear feet of inadequately sized lines 

l o  ,vv,-, -.., . , ,. .. - 4. - -- ttotal gallons of increased storage due t o  additional demand 

Leaks, Breaks, or restrictive flows due to age 
Project activity improves water quality by providing: 
C Adequate; turnover of water 

r Proper maintenance of disinfection residual 

Replacement of -total linear feet of lead, copper, asbestos-cement lines 

ARE WEST OF !JS-641. 

- - -."- -. -.. -,. .- . . . * , ->. ..~.. .. . 

a.* Date Project was approved by the Area Water Management Planning Coundl: L.: 



ERNIE FLETCHER GOVERNOR'S OFFICE FOR LOCAL DEVELOPMENT STEVE ROUERTSON 
GOVERNOR OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR COMMISSIONER 

1034 (ZAPITAL CENTER DRIVE, SUITE 340 

July 31, 2006 

FRANKFORT, KENTUCICY 40601-8204 
PHONE (507) 573-3382 FAX (502) 573-7939 

TOLL FREE (800) 346-5606 
www.kentucky.gov 

MS. KATHY ,WYATT 
351 ALMO ROAD 
ALMO, KY 42020 

RE: DEXTER-ALMO WD-COLES CAMPGROUND ROAD EXTENSIO 
ADDITIONAL INTERCONNECTION WITH MURRAY 

Dear Ms. Wyatt: S U ~ ~ r ~  :;1:9VICE 
90hiil+;!CSI~i\l  

The Kentucky State Clearinghouse, which has been officially designated as the 
Commonwealth's Single Point of Contact (SPOC) pursuant to Presidential Executive Order 
12372, has completed its evaluation of your proposal. The clearinghouse review of this 
proposal indicates there are no identifiable conflicts with any state or local plan, goal, or 
objective. Therefore, the State Clearinghouse recommends this project be approved for 
assistance by the cognizant federal agency. 

Although the primary function of the State Single Point of Contact is to coordinate the 
state and local evaluation of your proposal, the Kentucky State Clearinghouse also utilizes this 
process to apprise the applicant of statutory and regulatory requirements or other types of 
information which could prove to be useful in the event the project is approved for assistance. 
Information of this nature, if any, concerning this particular proposal will be attached to this 
correspondence. 

You should now continue with the application process prescribed by the appropriate 
funding agency. This process may include a detailed review by state agencies that have 
authority over specific types of projects. 

This letter signifies only that the project has been processed through the State Single 
Point of Contact. It is neither a commitment of funds from this agency or any other state of 
federal agency. 

An Equal Opportunity Employer MIFID 



The results of this review are valid for one year from the date of this letter. 
Continuation or renewal applications must be submitted to the State Clearinghouse annually. 
An application not submitted to the funding agency, or not approved within one year after 
completion of this review, must be re-submitted to receive a valid intergovernmental review. 

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please feel free.to contact my office at 
502-573-2382. 

Sincerely, 

Kentucky State Clearinghouse 

Attachments 
Cc: Purchase ADD 

KIA 



The Health and Family Services has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application 
ldentifier Number KY200606270934 

This project does not impact CHFS. 

The Transportation has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application ldentifier 
Number KY200606270934 

Thomas (Dl), Allen: 
Any proposed access or encroachment of a State maintained road right of way should be coordinated at the 
earliest possible stage with: 

Denny Alvey, P.E. 
Permits Engineer 
Kentucky Department of Highways 
5501 Kentucky Dam Road 
P. 0. Box 3010 
Paducah, Kentucky 42002-3010 
Telephone (270) 898-2431 
Fax: (270) 898-7457 

The Labor Cabinet has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application ldentifier 
Number KY200606270934 

PW RATES DO NOT APPLY 

The Heritage Council has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application ldentifier 
Number KY200606270934 

The project will have no effect on any property listed in or eligible for listing in the National Register of 
Historic Places. Further, an archaeological survey will not be necessary. Therefore, we have no objection to 
the project. 

The Natural Resources has made the following advisory comment pertaining to State Application ldentifier 
Number KY200606270934 

The proposed project is subject to Division of Water (DOW) jurisdiction because the following are or appear 
to be involved: water lines and appurtenances. Prior approval must be obtained from the DOW before 
construction can begin. The applicant must cite the State Application ldentifier (SAI #KY200606270934) 
when submitting plans and specifications. 

This project is consistent with the Calloway County Water Management Plan. It is approved for water 
management planning. It is approved for water withdrawal by the Water Quantity Management Section of 
DOW. From the application data, DOW ascertains that the proposed project is not located in a floodplain 
area. Therefore, a floodplain construction permit is not required for this project. 



The proposed project consists of extending a waterline down Coles Campground Road East and West of the 
intersection with Brinn Road. In addition, i t  will extend a waterline down Brinn Road to interconnect with the 
Murray water system to supplement Dexter-Almo Water District's current water supply. Dexter-Almo Water 
District currently buys water from Murray via one interconnection. This project will prevent a loss of water 
service in the case of a main break near the current interconnection. Also, this extension will boost 
pressure and increase flow to parts of the system that are West of US-641. Completion of this project will 
provide improved water service to 61 5 households as well as provide new water service to 25 households. 
There is no new demand associated with this project, so capacity is not an issue. However, final plans and 
specifications are subject to review by the Division of Water, based on sanitary features of the design. 

If the construction area disturbed is equal to or greater than 1 acre, the applicant will need to apply for a 
Kentucky Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (KPDES) storm water discharge permit. 

Utility line projects that cross a stream will require a Section 404 permit from the US Army Corps of 
Engineers and a 401 Water Quality Certification from DOW. 

This review was based upon the information that was provided by the applicant through the Clearinghouse 
for this project. An endorsement of this project does not satisfy, or imply, the acceptance or issuance of any 
permits, certifications or approvals that may be required from this agency under Kentucky Revised Statutes 
or Kentucky Administrative Regulations. Such endorsement means this agency has found no major 
concerns from the review of the proposed project as presented other than those stated as conditions or 
comments. 
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COLES CAMPGROUND ROAD 
ROAD WATER MAIN PROJECT 

Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
Almo, Kentucky 

July 31,2006 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 

Dexter-Alrno Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 
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Plans and Specifications may be obtained from the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, 35 1 Almo Road, 
Almo Kentucky, 42020, upon receipt of a check in accordance with the charge schedule below. All checks 
shall be payable to Dexter-Almo Heights Water District. (HOURS TO OBTAIN PLANS AND 
SPECIFICATIONS ARE 8:00 A.M. TO 11:30 A.M. - MONDAY THROUGH 
THURSDAY .) 

Questions about obtaining plans and specifications may be directed to Kathy Wyatt, 
Project Administrator, Dexter-Almo Heights Water District at (270) 753-9101. 

CONTRACT DOCUMENT F B  --- 

The nonrefundable fee of $25.00 will provide the contractor with one (1) set of 
Specifications, all addenda, and bidding documents. 

9. BID S U B M I T U  

Contractors must submit their bid in a sealed envelope and the envelope must contain the following 
information on the outside lower left-hand comer, viz.: 

SEALED BID: COLES CAMPGROUND ROAD WATER MAIN PROJECT 

RID OPENING DATE: AUGUST 24,2006, AT 4:00 PM CENTRAL 
PREYAILING TIME. 

Bids received after the scheduled closing time for reception of bids will not be considered provided legal 
and accepted bids have been received on said referenced Invitation. 

10. WITHDRAWAL 

No bidder may withdraw his bid for a period of sixty (60) days aRer the date set for the opening of bids. 
Clerical eKors and omissions in the computation of the lump sum shall not be cause for withdrawal of the 
bid without forfeiture of bid bond. Bids may be withdrawn in person only, prior to the closing date for 
receipt of bids. 

MINORITY BUSINESS ENTEWRISE PARTICIPATION 11. --- 

Dexter-Almo Heights Water District is committed to increasing the participation of minority 
business enterprises on construction projects, and encourages the use of minority subcontractors and 
material suppliers. For assistance in identifying minority vendors and subcontractors, the contractors may 
contact the Kentucky Office of Minority Business Enterprises, 2329 Capital Plaza Tower, F d o r t ,  
Kentucky 40601, Telephone no. (502) 564-2064 and Louisville Minority Business Development Center, 
6 1 1 W. Main Street, I,ouisville Kentucky 40202. 

12. RIGHT TO REECT 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Form of Proposal 

FP- 1 

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
FOR 

FLINT ROAD/WEST FORK ROAD WATER MAIN EXTENSION 
DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

CAIJLOWAY COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

This Form of Proposal consisting of Page FP - 1 through FP - 10, shall be used in submitting a 
proposal for work. Copies will be fiunished upon request by the authority issuing the Invitation to 
Bid. 

THIS PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY 

------ 
(Name and Address of Bidder) 

DATE: .- TELEPFIONE 

BIDDER'S FEDERAL, IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - 

TO: DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
351 ALMO ROAD 
ALMO, KY 42020 

GENTLEMEN: 

This bidder, in compliance with your requirements and having carefully examined the complete 
contract documents including the Drawings and the Specification for the work as prepared by Kim 
Oatman, 133 Pine Creek Drive, Paducah, KY 4200 1 ; hereby proposes to furnish all labor, materials, 
supplies and services required to perform the specifics of the Contract Documents, within the time set 
forth therein and for the stated Lump Sun Bid Amount and Unit Prices. 

The Bidder, hereby acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda: 

ADDENDUM NO. DATED ADDENDUM NO. DATED 

(IF NONE HAVE BEEN ISSUED AND RECEIVED, INSERT THE WORD, NONE.) 



Cotes Campground Road Water Main Project Form of Proposal 
Dexter-Alrno Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

F P - 3  
UNIT PRICES - IF OWNER CHOOSES TO ADD WORK ABOVE THE CONTRACT 

The unit prices below shall include all labor, materials, supplies, services, trenching, bedding and 
bacMi1lling required to install and make fully operational the following items: 

4-inch PVC Water Main $ /If 
6-inch PVC Water Main $ - /If 
8-inch PVC Water Main $ /If 
8x8~8-inch MJ DI Tee $___-- lea 
8x8~6-inch MJ DI Tee $-- -- lea 
8x8~4-inch MJ DI Tee $ - lea 
6x6~6-inch MJ DI Tee $- lea 
6x6~4-inch MJ DI Tee $ lea 
4x4~4-inch MJ DI Tee $ lea 
4-inch MJ DI Fitting (90,45,22.5, 11.25) $-- lea 
6-inch MJ DI Fitting (90,45,22.5, 1 1.25) $ lea 
8-inch MJ DI Fitting (90,45,22.5, 1 1.25) $__- lea 
4-inch MJ Gate Valve & Box $-- lea 
6-inch MJ Gate Valve & Box $ - lea 
8-inch MJ Gate Valve & Box $-- lea 
8x6-inch DI Reducer $- - lea 
6x4-inch DI Reducer $ lea 
3-inch Flushing Hydrant and Valve $-- lea 
8-inch Flushing Hydrant and Valve $ -.- lea 
4-inch DI Plug $- lea 
6-inch DI Plug $- lea 
8-inch DI Plug $ lea 
Boring under road with 10-inch steel casing $-- - /I f 
Boring under road with 12-inch steel casing $ - /If 
Boring under road with no casing $- /I f 
Boring under gravel drive, asphalt drive $ /If 
Setting of meter assembly - short (no bore) $- -- lea 
Setting of meter assembly - long (bore under road) $- lea 

*Note all unit price are only for work added above the contract 

SIGNED BY: 

FIRM NAME: (Typed) .- 

ADDRESS: 

NOTE: The Authentication of Bid and Statement of Non-Collusion and Non-Conflict of 
Interest Page FP-4 must be properly executed for the LUMP SUM RID to be valid. 
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BIDDER'S QUAL,IFICATIONS 

The Bidder's Qualifications are required by the owner to be submitted as set forth herewith: 

1. This fm is a Corp. , Partnership- , or Proprietorship - 

2. A permanent place of business is maintained at: 

STREET CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

TELEPHONE NUMBER 

The following construction plant and equipment will be made available for the use on this 
contract: 

In the event the contract is awarded the undersigned, surety bonds will be furnished by: 

Experience of Contractor an other similar work (Minimum of 5 years required): 

6.  We now have the following jobs under contract and bonded: 

JOB TOTAL CONTRACT PERCENT COMPLETED 
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A F F I D A V I T  

Form of Proposal 

FP-7 

Comes the affiant and after having been duly sworn states as follows: 

1. That affiant is the contractor awarded a contract by Dexter-Almo Heights Water 
District. 

2. That all contractors and subcontractors employed, or that will be employed, under the 
provisions of this contract are in compliance with Kentucky requirements for Workers' 
Compensation Insurance according to KRS Chapter 342 and Unemployment Insurance 
according to KRS Chapter 341. 

Further, the affiant sayeth naught. 

Title: --- 

Contractor: -- 

State of Kentucky 

County of 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by -- on this 

day of - - -9 -. 

My c o ~ s s i o n  expires ---- - 

Notary Public, State at Large 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

LIST OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS 
(Must Re Submitted With Bid) 

Form of Proposal 

FP-9 

The following list of proposed subcontractors is required by the OWNER to be completely executed 
and submitted with each bidder's proposal. All subcontractors are subject to the approval of Dexter- 
Almo Heights Water District, Almo, Kentucky. If certain branches of the work are to be done by the 
Prime Contractor, so state. Failure to submit this list completely filled out may cause a rejection of 
the bidder's proposal. 

BRANCH OF WORK NAME OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

1. Trenching, Earthwork, Excavating -.-. - 

2. Landscaping - 
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Contract Agreement 
CA- 1 

AGREEMENT BETWEN 
DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

AND CONTRACTOR 

THIS AGREEMENT, made the - day of 2006 by and between 
("Contractor"), and the DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER 

DISTRICT, ("Owner"), is to bind the parties hereto to the principles and terms set forth herein, and 
shall be binding upon the parties hereto. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and Owner for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE No. 1 SCOPE OF WORK: 

The Contractor shall furnish all of the materials and perform all the Work described in the 
Specifications andfor shown on the Drawings entitled: Coles Campground Road Water Main 
Project which Specifications andor Drawings are incorporated in and made a part thereof. 

ARTICLE No. 2 TIME OF COMPLETION: 

The Contractor must begin Work specified by the written Notice to Proceed from the Owner. 
Substantial Completion of the Wark shall be seventy-five (75) calendar days after the issuance of the 
Notice to Proceed with Final Completion one-hundred and five (1 05) calendar days after the issuance 
of the Notice to Proceed. 

ARTICLE No. 3 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: 

It is mutually understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that time is of the essence in 
the performance of this contract and that the Owner, the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, will 
sustain substantial monetary and other damages in the event of a failure or delay by the Contractor in 
the completion of the Work. It is further understood and agreed upon and made part of this Contract 
that the Work must be begun, performed, and completed without delay by the Contractor and if the 
Contractor fails to begin, perform without interruption, and complete said Work in due and proper 
time, the Contractor may be declared in default of this Agreement. If the Wark is not substantially 
complete within the time required in Article No. 2 of this Agreement, the Contractor shall pay to the 
Owner, as liquidated damages for delay and not as a penalty, the sum of one hundred dollars ($100) 
for every day after the date for Substantial Completion until construction is in fact substantially 
complete. If the Work is not finally complete within the time required in Article No. 2 of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall pay to the Owner, as liquidated damages for delay and not as a 
penalty, the sum of fifty dollars ($50) for every day after the date for final completion until 
construction is in fact finally complete. This provision for liquidated damages is intended to 
compensate the Owner for delay only and shall not preclude the Owner from making claims for other 
damages. 
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ARTICLE No. 8 CONTRACT ADJCJSTMENTS: 

The Owner, without invalidating this Agreement may make adjustments to the Work as provided by 
KRS 45A.200 (I), and may order extra Work or make changes by altering, adding to or deducting 
fiom the Work. All such Work shall be executed and paid for in accordance with the Kentucky 
Infrastructure Requirements. 

ARTICLE No. 9 SPECIAL, NOTICE: 

The Contractor hereby certifies that it is fully informed of the canditions relating to construction and 
labor under which the Work under this Agreement is to be performed, and agrees that it shall employ 
methods and means in carrying out the Work so as not to interfere with or interrupt the Work of any 
other Contractor working odor adjacent to the site for this Work. Contractor further agrees that it 
shall employ methods and means to minimize interference or interruption of any business or resident 
along the route of this project and that all disrupted properties, driveways, yards, fences, fields, etc ... 
will be restored to pre-construction canditions. 

ARTICLE No. 10 OWNER'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT: 

This contract may be terminated far the convenience of the Water District or for default by the 
Contractor. 

IN WITNESS WI3EiREOF this Agreement is executed in three (3) counterparts, each one of which 
shall be deemed an original and adequate proof of this Agreement, on the date and year first herein 
before written. 

WITNESS: CONTRACTOR: .--- 

BY: 

.- 
printed name 

TITLE: -. 

OWNER : Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 

printed name 

Revised 07-3 1-06 
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SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

1. -- SCOPE 

These Conditions shall apply to all Contract Documents. 

2. GENERAL 

A. These Specifications and Drawings accompanying the Bid describe the work to be 
done and the materials to be furnished for the Coles Campground Road Water 
Main Project, in the DexterIAlmo Heights Water District, Kentucky. 

B. Site Visit: Bidders, before submitting proposals, shall visit and examine the site to 
satisfl themselves as to the nature and scope of the construction and any 
difficulties attending the execution. The submission of a proposal will be 
construed as evidence that a visit and examination has been made. Later claims 
for labor, equipment, or materials required or difficulties encountered which could 
have been foreseen had such an examination been made, will not be recognized. 
Contact person: Kim H. Oatrnan (contact through Water District). 

C .  It is contemplated that Contracts will be awarded as soon as possible after 
submission of bids. After award, submit materials lists for approval. TJpon 
approval, place orders for primary materials so that no delay will be caused by 
failure to have these materials at job site on schedule. 

D. All work shall be perfarmed in such a manner so as not to interfere with normal 
routines of the property owners within construction limits any more than 
necessary. Consult with the Engineer or Owner if problems should arise with 
property owners during construction. 

3. DIVISION OF SPECIFICATIONS 

Division of Specifications into sections is done for convenience of reference and is not 
intended to control Contractor in dividing work among Subcontractors or to limit scope 
of work performed by any trade under any given section. The General Contractor shall 
have full responsibility for the complete construction of this project and hereinafter 
throughout the specifications shall be called the Contractor. 
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8. TEMPORARY FIELD OFFICE 

The Contractor will not be required to provide and maintain a temporary field office at 
the site during the construction of the project. 

TEMPORARY SIGNS 

Signs of advertisement: Not to be displayed without approval. 

CONFLICTS -- 
If there is any conflict between the Specifications, the Drawings, the Specifications shall 
govern. 

INTERPRETATIONS 

Contractor is hereby put on notice that it is in his contractual obligation to adjust 
differences between his subcontractors. Attempts to have Dexter-Almo Heights Water 
District settle disputes between Contractor and Subcontractors will not be given 
consideration. 

CHANGE ORDERS 

Change orders, which may be issued subsequent to Contract Documents, are subject to 
written approval by the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District. 

The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall be required to comply strictly with all codes, 
provisions and regulations with respect to the erection and maintenance of all necessary 
barricades, lights, etc. 

ACCESS TO SITE 

The entrance to the construction site for all contractors shall be by means approved by the 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District. The Contractor shall be responsible for any and all 
damage to the entire satisfaction of the Engineer. 

WORKER'S PARKING - 

Parking shall be provided for all workers on this project by the Owner. Parking facilities 
shall1 be designated by the Owner. Workers shall not park on properties that have not 
been designated and approved by the Owner. 
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2 1. CERTIFICATES 

A. Plumbing: When applicable, the Contractor shall furnish the Owner with a 
Certificate of inspection and approval from the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The 
Contractor S M , L  be responsible for arranging for necessary permit from State. 

B. Electrical: When applicable, the Contractor shall arrange for electrical inspection 
upon final completion of the Work of this Contract. 

22. RESTROOM FACILITIES 

Contractor shall provide adequate restroom facilities as required. 

23. BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE 

Builders Risk Insurance will be required on this project. 

The Contractor shalI use existing, established and permanent benchmarks to which easy 
access may be had during the progress of the work, and to layout the facilities. The 
Contractor shall be responsible for all lines, levels and measurement of all work executed 
under this contract. The Contractor shall verify the figures before laying out the work and 
will be held responsible for any error resulting from the failure to do so. The Contractor 
shall be prepared to guarantee to each of the Subcontractors the dimensions which they 
may require for the layout of their work. 

25. SHOP DRAWING 

Each and every shop drawing or setting drawing submitted to the owner for review shall 
bear a stamp of certification over the Contractor's signature indicated that the drawings 
being submitted have been thoroughly pre-checked and approved by the Contractor. 
Drawings which do not bear such certification will be returned for pre-checking in 
accordance with this requirement. Any delay in securing final review of such drawings 
shall be judged as the fault of the Contractor. 

26, HAZARDOUS M A T E W S  

A. In the event the Contractor encounters material reasonably believed to be asbestos, 
which has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor shall immediately stop work in 
the area affected and report the condition to the Engineer and the Owner. The work 
in the affected area shall not thereafter be resumed, if in fact, the material is asbestos, 
until it has been rendered harmless. Removal and disposal of any hazardous waste 
shall be done at the Contractor's expense. 
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SECTION 0 1 028 
CHANGE ORDER PROCEDURE 

PART 1 GENERAL 

1.01 SUMMARY 

A. Make such changes in the Work, in the Contract Sum, in the Contract 
Time of Completion, or any combination thereof, as described in the 
Change Orders signed by the Owner and the Contractor. 

1.02 PROCESSING CHANGE ORDERS 

A. Change orders will be numbered in sequence and dated. The change order 
will describe the changes, changes in the Contract Sum, changes in the 
Contract Time of Completion and will be signed by the Owner and the 
Contractor. Request for estimates for possible changes are not to be 
considered Change Orders or direction to proceed with the proposed 
changes. 

B. Change orders will be written using AIA Document G.701. 

END OF SECTION 
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1.05 PRECONSTRlJCTION CONFERENCE 

A. Owner will schedule a conference after Notice of Award. 

B. Attendance Required: General Contractor and primary subcontractors. 

C. Agenda: 

Execution of Owner-Contractor Agreement. 
Confirm submission of executed bonds and insurance 

certificates. 
Submission of list of Subcontractors, list of products, schedule of 
values, and progress schedule. 
Designation of personnel representing the parties in Contract. 
Procedures and processing of field decisions, submittals, 
substitutions, applications for payments, proposal request, Change 
Orders, and Contract close-out procedures. 
Scheduling. 
Security and housekeeping 
Use of easements and properties 
Temporary utilities 
Procedures for testing. 
Procedures for maintaining record documents. 
Requirements for activating system. 
Inspection and acceptance of work and properties during and after 
construction period. 

1.06 PROGRESS MEETINGS 

A. Schedule and administer meetings throughout progress of the Work at 
maximum monthly intervals. 

B. Make arrangements for meetings, prepare agenda with copies for 
participants, preside at meetings, record minutes, and distribute copies 
within days to Owner, participants, and those affected by decisions made. 

C. Attendance Required: Job superintendent, major Subcontractors and 
suppliers, as appropriate to agenda topics for each meeting. 
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SECTION 01 100 
SUMMARY 

PART 1 - GEWRAL 

1.1 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. Project Identification: Project consists of waterline extension along Coles 
Campground Road. 

1. Project Location: Dexter-Almo, Kentucky. 
2. Owner: Dexter-Alma Heights Water District 

B. Engineer Identification: All references to the term "Architect" shall be understood 
to mean design professional in which this project is "Engineer". The Contract 
Documents, dated July 23, 2006, were prepared for Project by the Engineer, 
Kim Oatman, 133 Pine Creek Drive, Paducah, Kentucky. 

C. The Work of the Base Bid consists of: 

1. All necessary labor, tools, equipment and materials required to complete 
construction of 2,630 linear feet of 8 inch PVC, 1,995 linear feet of 6 inch 
PVC and 1,475 linear feet of 4 inch PVC water main extension and all 
related Work as shown on the drawings along Coles Campground Raad, 
Mallory Court, and North 1 6 ~  (Brinn Rd). 

END OF SECTION 
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B. Sequentially number the transmittal forms. Re-submittals to have original 
number with an alphabetic suffix. 

C .  Identify Project, Contractor, Subcontractor or supplier; pertinent drawing 
sheet and detail number(s), and specification Section number, as 
appropriate. 

D. Apply Contractor's stamp, signed or initialed certifying that review, 
verification of Products required, field dimensions, adjacent construction 
Work, and coordination of information is in accordance with the 
requirements of the Work and Contract Documents. 

E. Schedule submittals to expedite the Project and deliver to owner at 
business address. Coordinate submission of related items. 

F. Identify variations from Contract Documents and Product or system 
limitations, which may be detrimental to successful performance of the 
completed Work. 

G. Provide space for owner review sign off. 

H. Revise and resubmit submittals as required and identify all changes made 
since previous submittal. 

I. Distribute copies of reviewed submittals to concerned parties. Instruct 
parties toapromptly report any inability to comply with provisions. 

1.04 CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDTJLES 

A. Submit initial progress schedule in duplicate within 7 days after date of 
Owner-Contractor Agreement. 

R. Revise and resubmit as required. 

C. Submit revised schedules with each Application for Payment, identifying 
changes since previous version. 

D. Show complete sequence of construction by activity, identiwng Work of 
separate stages and other logically grouped activities. Indicate the early 
and late start, early and late finish, float dates, and duration. 

E. Indicate estimated percentage of completion for each item of Work at each 
submission. 
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1.09 MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATES 

A. When specified in individual specification Sections, submit 
manufacturer's certificate to Owner for review, in quantities specified for 
Product Data. 

R. Indicate material or product conforms to or exceeds specified 
requirements. Submit supporting reference data, affidavits, and 
certifications as appropriate. 

C. Certificates may be recent of previous test results an material or Product, 
but must be acceptable to Owner. 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 0 1400 
QUALITY CONTROL 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1 .O1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Quality assurance and control of installation. 

B. References 

C. Field samples 

D. Inspection and testing laboratory services 

E. Manufacturer's field services and reports 

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS 

A. Section 01300 - Submittals: Submission of Manufacturer's Instructions and 
Certificates. 

B. Section 01600 - Material and Equipment: Requirements for material and product 
quality. 

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCEICONTROL OF INSTALLATION 

A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, site 
conditions and workmanship to produce Work of specified quality. 

B. Comply fully with manufacturers instructions, including each step in sequence. 

C .  Should manufacturer's instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request 
clarification from Owner before proceeding. 

D. Comply with specified standards as a minimum quality for the Work except when 
more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher 
standards or more precise workmanship. 

E. Perfbrm work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality. 
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SECTION 0 1 500 
TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 SUMMARY 

A. This Section includes requirements for temporary facilities and controls, 
including temporary utilities, support facilities, and security and protection 
facilities. 

1.2 DEFINITIONS - NOT REQUIRED 

1.3 IJSE CHARGES 

A. General: Cost or use charges for temporary facilities are not chargeable to 
Owner or Engineer and shall be included in the Contract Sum. Allow other 
entities to use temporary services and facilities without cost, including, but not 
limited to, Owner's construction forces, occupants of Project, Engineering, 
testing, and inspecting agencies and personnel of authorities having jurisdiction. 

B. Water Service: Water shall be provided at the sole expense of the Contractor. 
Owner shall not incur use charges for Contractor's water usage. 

C. Electric Power Service: Electric power shall be provided by the Contractor. 
Owner shall not incur any use charges for the Contractor's electric usage. 

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Standards: Comply with ANSIA10.6, NECA's "Temporary Electrical 
Facilities," and NFPA 24 1 . 

1 .  Electric Service: Comply with NECA, NEMA, and UL standards and 
regulations for temporary electric service. Install service to comply with 
NFPA 70. 

B. Tests and Inspections: Arrange for authorities having jurisdiction to test and 
inspect each temporary utility before use. Obtain required certifications and 
permits. 



Coles Campground Water Main Project 

Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY2005082209.3 1 

Section 01 500 

Page 3 

C. Power Distribution System Circuits: Where permitted and overhead and exposed 
for surveillance, wiring circuits, not exceeding 125-V ac, 20-A rating, and lighting 
circuits may be nonmetallic sheathed cable. 

PART 3 - EXECUTION 

3.1 INSTAL,L,ATION, GENERAL 

A. Locate facilities where they will serve Project adequately and result in minimum 
interference with performance of the Work. Relocate and modify facilities as 
required. 

B. Provide each facility ready for use when needed to avoid delay. Maintain and 
modifl as required. Do not remove until facilities are no longer needed or are 
replaced by authorized use of completed permanent facilities. 

3.2 TEMPORARY UTILITY INSTALLATION 

A. Water Service: Use of Owner's existing water service facilities will be 
permitted, as long as facilities are cleaned and maintained in a condition 
acceptable to Owner. At Substantial Completion, restore these facilities to 
condition existing before initial use. 

1. Provide rubber hoses as necessary to serve Project site. 
2. Where installations below an outlet might be damaged by spillage or 

leakage, provide a drip pan of suitable size to minimize water damage. 
Drain accumulated water promptly &om pans. 

B. Electric Power Service: Use of Owner's existing electric power service will be 
permitted, as long as equipment is maintained in a condition acceptable to 
Owner. 

C. Electric Distribution: Provide receptacle outlets adequate for connection of 
power tools and equipment. 

1. Provide waterproof comectors to connect separate lengths of electrical 
power cords if single lengths will not reach areas where construction 
activities are in progress. Do not exceed safe length-voltage ratio. 

3.3 SECURITY AND PROTECTION FACILITIES INSTALLATION 

A. Barricades, Warning Signs, and Lights: Comply with standards and code 
requirements for erecting structurally adequate barricades. Paint with 
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SECTION 01 600 
MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

PART 1 - GENFB.AI. 

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Products 
B. Transportation and handling. 
C. Storage and protection. 
D. Product Options 
E. Substitutions 

1.2 RELATED SECTION 

A. Section 01400 - Quality Control: Product quality monitoring. 

1.3 PRODUCTS 

A. Products: Means new material, machinery, components, equipment, fixtures 
and systems forming the work, Does not include machinery and equipment used 
for preparation, fabrication, conveying and erection of the Work. Products may 
also include existing materials or components required for use. 

B. Do not use materials and equipment removed from existing premises except as 
specifically permitted by the Contract Documents. 

C. Provide interchangeable components of the same manufacturer for similar 
components. 

1.4 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING 

A. Transport and handle products in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 

B. Promptly inspect shipments to assure that products comply with requirements, 
quantities are correct, and products are undamaged. 

C. Provide equipment and personnel to handle products by methods to prevent 
soiling, disfigurement or damage. 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 

Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Section 01600 

Page 3 

1.7 SUBSTITUTIONS 

A. Request for substitutions must be submitted in writing no less than 5 working 
days prior to date bids are due. 

B. Substitutions may be considered when a product becomes unavailable through 
no fault of the Contractor. 

C .  Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of 
proposed Substitution with Contract Documents. 

D. A request constitutes a representation that the Bidder: 

1. Has investigated proposed product and determined that it meets or exceeds 
the quality level of the specified product. 

2. Will provide same warranty for the Substitution as for specified product. 

3. Will coordinate installation and make changes to other Work, which may 
be required for the work to be complete with no additional cost to the 
Owner. 

4. Waives claims for additional costs or time extension, which may 
subsequently become apparent. 

5. Will reimburse Owner for review or redesign services associated with 
approval by Authorities. 

E. Substitutions will not be considered when they are indicated or implied on shop 
drawing or Product data submittals, without separate written request, or when 
acceptance will require revision to the Contract Documents. 

F. Substitution Submittal Procedure: 

1. Submit three copies of request for Substitution for Consideration. Limit 
each request to one proposed Substitution. 

2. Submit shop drawings, product data, and certified test results at testing to 
the proposed product equivalence. 

3. The Owner will notify Contractor, in writing, of decision to accept or 
reject request. 

END OF SECTION 
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Clean surfaces exposed to view; remove temporary labels, stains and foreign 
substances, polish transparent and glossy surfaces. 

Clean equipment and fixtures to a sanitary condition. 

Clean operating equipment. 

Remove waste, surplus materials, rubbish and construction materials fiom site. 
Contractor will remove all waste from site within 48 hours of being declared 
waste or requested by Owner. 

ADJUSTING 

Adjust operating Products and equipment to ensure smooth and unhindered 
operation. 

PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

Maintain on site, one set of the following record documents; record actual 
revisions to the Work: 

1. Contract Drawings 

2. Specifications 

3. Addenda 

4. Change Orders and other Modifications to the Contract. 

5. Reviewed shop drawings, product data and samples. 

Store Record Documents separate fiom documents used for construction. 

Record information concurrent with construction progress. 

Specifications: Legibly mark and record at each Product section, description of 
actual Products installed, including the following: 

1. Manufacturer's name and product model and number. 

2. Product substitutions or alternates utilized. 

3. Changes made by Addenda and Modifications. 
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G. Part 3: Project documents and certificates, including the following: 

1. Shop drawings and product data. 

2. Power quality test results (including any required grounding tests). 

3. Certificates. 

4. Photocopies of warranties and bonds. 

H. Submit one copy of completed volumes in final form 15 days prior to final 
inspection. This copy will be returned after final inspection with Owner's 
comments. Revise content of documents as required prior to final submittal. 

I. Submit final volumes revised within ten days after final inspection. 

A. Provide notarized copies. 

B. Execute and assemble documents for subcontractors, suppliers, and 
manufacturers. 

C. Submit prior to final Application for Payment. 

D. For items of Work delayed beyond date of Substantial Completion, provide 
updated submittal within ten days after acceptance, listing date of acceptance as 
start of warranty period. 

1.08 SPARE PARTS AND MAINTENANCE MATERIALS 

A. Provide products, spare parts, maintenance and extra materials in quantities 
specified in individual specification Sections. 

B. Deliver to and place in location as directed. Obtain receipt prior to final payment. 

PART 2- PRODIJCTS - NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 
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ADVERTISEMENT FOR BIDS 

Sealed proposals for the following work will be received by the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, 35 1 
Almo Road, Almo, Kentucky 42020, in the manner and on the date hereinafter specilied for the Coles 
Campground Road Water Main Project as set forth in the specifications and as shown on the drawings 
prepared by and approved by Kim Oatman, P.E. under the terms and conditions of this Invitation. 

2. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Project consists of the construction of 2,630 If of &inch PVC, 1,995 If of 6-inch PVC and 1,475 If of 4-inch 
PVC water main and all related work along Coles Campground Road and North 16& (Brim) Road. 

3. METHOD OF RECEIVING BIDS 

Bids will be received from Prime Contractors on a Unit Price Amount for the total project. All phases of 
the work shall be submitted in the manner herein described and on the official proposal form included with 
the conditions and specifications and shall be subject to all the conditions as set forth and described in the 
Bid Documents. 

Bids shall be submitted only on the Form of Proposal supplied by the Owner. Failure to comply with the 
foregoing requirements will be cause for invaljdation of bid. 

4. METHOD OF AWARD 

Final award of Contract will be made on the basis of the lowest, responsive and responsible bid which offers 
the best value. 

5. SCEDULE OF PROJECT 

Substantial completion, 75 calendar days fiom issuance of a written work order. 

Final completion, 30 calendar days after the date of substantial completion. 

6. BONDING 

All bids shall be accompanied by a bid guarantee of not less than five (5%) percent of the amount of the 
base bid. A 100% Performance Bond and 100% Payment Bond shall be furnished by the successful bidder. 
All bonding and insurance requirements shall be in accordance with AIA requirements. 

7. PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS REVIEW 

Specifications, Plans, and Contract Documents may be examined at the following places: 

1. Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, 35 1 Almo Road, Almo, Kentucky 42020 

8. OBTAINING PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 



Plans and Specifications may be obtained fiom the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, 351 A h  Road, 
AZmo Kentucky, 42020, upon receipt of a check in accordance with the charge schedule below. All checks 
shall be payable to Dexter-Almo Heights Water District. (HOURS TO OBTAIN PLANS AND 
SPECIFICATIONS ARE 8:00 A.M. TO 11:30 A.M. - MONDAY THROUGH 
THURSDAY.) 

Questions about obtaining plans and specifications may be directed to Kathy Wyatt, 
Project Administrator, Dexter-AImo Heights Water District at (270) 753-9101. 

CONTRACT D O C W N T  FEE 

The nonrefundable fee of $25.00 will provide the contractor with one (1) set of 
Specifications, all addenda, and bidding documents. 

9. BID SUBMITTAL 

Contractors must submit their bid in a sealed envelope and the envelope must contain the following 
information on the outside lower left-hand corner, viz.: 

SEALED BID: COLES CAMPGROUND ROAD WATER MAIN PROJECT 

BID OPENING DATE: AUGUST 24,2006, AT 4:00 PM CENTRAL, 
PRIEVAILING TIMIE. 

Bids received after the scheduled closing time for reception of bids will not be considered provided legal 
and accepted bids have been received on said referenced Invitation. 

10. BID WITHDRAWAL 

No bidder may withdraw his bid for a period of sixty (60) days after the date set for the opening of bids. 
Clerical e m  and omissions in the computation of the lump sum shall not be cause for withdrawal of the 
bid without forfeiture of bid bond. Bids may be withdrawn in person only, prior to the closing date for 
receipt of bids. 

1 1. MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PARTICIPATION 

Dexter-Almo Heights Water District is committed to increasing the participation of minority 
business enterprises on construction projects, and encourages the use of minority subcontractors and 
material suppliers. For assistance in identifying minority vendors and subcontractors, the contractors may 
contact the Kentucky Office of Minority Business Enterprises, 2329 Capital Plaza Tower, F d o r t ,  
Kentucky 40601, Telephone no. (502) 564-2064 and Louisville Minority Business Development Center, 
61 1 W. Main Street, Louisville Kentucky 40202. 

12. RIGHT TO REJECT 



Dexter-Almo Heights Water District reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive all formalities 
andlor technicalities where the best interest of the Owner may be served. 

GENERAL, WORMA.TION 

A. The Listing of major subcontractors, unit prices, and material lists are to be submitted with the bid. 

B. Only those Prime Contractors who have obtained Plans and Bid Documents directly from Dexter-Almo 
Heights Water District will be eligible to submit a bid for this project. 

C. A prime bidder is to have a responsible authorized representative at the bid opening for post bid review 
of the apparent low bid that follows immediately after the opening and reading of the bids. Failure to 
comply with this requirement may be cause for rejection of bid. 

14. PRE-BID CONFERENCE 

A pre-bid conference will be held on August 14,2006 @ 4:00 p.m. prevailing central time, at the Dexter- 
Almo Heights Water District, 351 Almo Road, Almo, KY 42020. Decisions and clarification's discussed at 
this meeting wiH be incorporated into the bid documents by an addendum issued no later than five (5) 
calendar days prior to bidding. 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Form of Proposal 

F P - 1  

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
FOR 

F1,INT ROADNVlEST FORK ROAD WATER MAIN EXTENSION 
DEXTER-ALMO HEIGJTTS WATER DISTRICT 

CALLOWAY COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

This Form of Proposal consisting of Page FP - 1 thraugh FP - 10, shall be used in submitting a 
proposal for work. Copies will be furnished upon request by the authority issuing the Invitation to 
Bid. 

THIS PROPOSAL SUB-D BY- 

---- 
(Name and Address of Bidder) 

DATE:- -- TELEPHONE__- 

BIDDER'S FEDERAL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER - 

TO: DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
351 ALMO ROAD 
ALMO, KY 42020 

GENTLEMEN: 

This bidder, in compliance with your requirements and having carefully examined the complete 
contract documents including the Drawings and the Specification for the work as prepared by Kim 
Oatman, 133 Pine Creek Drive, Paducah, KY 42001 ; hereby proposes to M s h  all labor, materials, 
supplies and services required to perform the specifics of the Contract Documents, within the time set 
forth therein and for the stated Lump Sum Bid Amount and Unit Prices. 

The Bidder, hereby acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda: 

ADDENDUM NO. DATED ADDENDTJM NO. DAmD-.- 

(IF NONE HAVE BEEN ISSUED AND RECEIVED, INSERT THE WORD, NONE.) 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY200508220931 

Form of  Proposal 

F P - 2  

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
PQR 

COLES CAMPGROUND ROAD WATER MAIN PROJECT 
DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTMCT 

CALLOWAY COUNTY, KEWUCW 

UNIT PRICE BASE BID: 

The bidder agrees to furnish all labor, materials, supplies and services required to construct 2,630 If 
of 8-inch PVC, 1,995 If of 6-inch PVC and 1,475 If of 4-inch PVC Water Main System known as the 
Coles Campground Road Water Main Project and all related work and accessories for the Dexter- 
A h o  Heights Water District in accordance with the Specifications and Contract Documents (sheets 1 
through 6) and duly issued Addenda for the UNIT PRICE BASE BID set forth below: 

2,630 lf of 8 inch x DOLLARS PER LF = DOLLARS 
Bidder's Unit ~ Z c e  Bid Amount (use figures) 

1,995 If of 6 inch x -, DOLLARS PER LF = DOLLARS 
Bidder's IJnit Price Bid Amount (use figures) 

1,475 1f 0f4 kch x DOLLARS PER LF = DOLLARS 
Bidder's Unit Price Bid Amount (use figures) 

Total Bid $-- DOLLARS 

Note: Bids will be evaluated an the lowest unit price. Contractor's payment will be based on the 
actual linear foatage of water main system installed times the above established unit price. 

ALTERNATE BIDS 

NONE 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY200508220931 

Form of Proposal 

F P - 3  
UNIT PRICES - IF OWNER CHOOSES TO ADD WORK ABOVE THE CONTRACT 

The unit prices below shall include all labor, materials, supplies, services, trenching, bedding and 
backfiI1ling required to install and make fully operational the following items: 

4-inch PVC Water Main $ /I f 
6-inch PVC Water Main $----- /If 
8-inch PVC Water Main $ /If 
8x8~8-inch MJ DI Tee $ - lea 
8x8~6-inch MJ DI Tee $ -- lea 
8x8~4-inch MJ DI Tee $ lea 
6x6~6-inch MJ DI Tee $--- lea 
6x6~4-inch MJ DI Tee $ -- lea 
4x4~4-inch MJ DI Tee $- - lea 
4-inch MJ DI Fitting (90,45,22.5, 11.25) $ lea 
6-inch MJ DI Fitting (90,45,22.5,11.25) $ lea 
8-inch MJ DI Fitting (90,45,22.5,11.25) $ - lea 
4-inch MJ Gate Valve & Box $ lea 
6-inch MJ Gate Valve & Box $ - lea 
8-inch MJ Gate Valve & Box $-- lea 
8x6-inch DI Reducer $ lea 
6x4-inch DI Reducer $_----- lea 
3-inch Flushing Hydrant and Valve $ lea 
8-inch Flushing Hydrant and Valve $ lea 
4-inch D1 Plug $ lea 
6-inch DI Plug $- lea 
8-inch DI Plug $ lea 
Boring under road with 10-inch steel casing $--- - /If 
Boring under road with 12-inch steel casing $ - A f 
Boring under road with no casing $ /I f 
Boring under gravel drive, asphalt drive :--- ll f 
Setting af meter assembly - short (no bore) -- lea 
Setting of meter assembly - long (bore under road) $ lea 

*Note all unit price are only for work added above the contract 

SIGNED BY: 

FLRM NAME: (Typed) - - -.- 

ADDRESS: --- 

NOTE: The Authentication of Bid and Statement of Non-Collusion and Non-Conflict of 
Interest Page FP-4 must be properly executed for the LUMP STJM BID to be valid. 



Cotes Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Form of Proposal 

F P - 4  

FORM OF PROPOSAL 
AUTHENTICATION OF BID AND STATEMENT OF NON-COLLUSION AND 

NON-CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY: 

1. That I am the Bidder (if the Bidder is an individual), a Partner in the Bidder (if the Bidder is a 
Partnership), or an officer or employee of the Bidding corporation having authority to sign on its 
behalf (if the Bidder is a corporation); 

2. That the submitted bid or bids covering this Bid have been arrived at by the Bidder independently and 
have been submitted without collusion with, and without agreement, understanding or planned 
c o m o n  course of action with any other Contractor, Vendor of materials, supplies, equipment or 
services described in the Invitation to Bid, designed to limit independent bidding or competition, as 
prohibited by provision KRS 45 A.325; 

3. That the contents of the bid or bids have not been communicated by the Bidder or its employees or 
Agents to any person not an employee or Agent of the bidder or its surety on any bond furnished with 
the bid or bids and will not be communicated to any such person prior to the osc ia l  opening of the bid 
or bids; 

4. That the Bidder is legally entitled to enter into the Contract with Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, 
and is not in violation of any prohibited conflict of interest, including those prohibited by the 
provisions of KRS 164.390 and 45A.340 and 45A.455; 

5. This offer is for ( calendar days fiam the date this bid is opened. In submitting the above, 
it is expressly agreed that upon proper acceptance by the Dexter-Alma Heights Water District of any 
or all items bid above, a Contract shall thereby be created with respect to the items accepted; 

6.  That I have fully informed myself regarding and affirm the accuracy of all statements made in this 
Form of Proposal, including Bid Amount. 

7. Unless otherwise exempted by KRS 45.590, the Bidder intends to comply in full with all requirements 
of the Kentucky Civil Rights Act and to submit data required by the Kentucky Equal Employment Act 
upon being designated the successful Bidder. 

8. That the Bidder, if awarded a Contract, will not be in violation of the Executive Branch Code of Ethics 
established by KRS 1 1A.001 through KRS 1 1A.990. 

READ CAREFULLY - SIGN IN SPACE BELOW - FAILURE TO SIGN INVALIDATES BID 

SIGNED BY: TITLE: 

FIRM: TELEPHONE NO.: 

ADDMSS: DATE: 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY200508220931 

Form of Proposal 

F P - 5  

BIDDER'S QUALIFICATIONS 

The Bidder's Qualifications are required by the owner to be submitted as set forth herewith: 

1. This firm is a Corp. , Partnership- or Proprietorship 

2. A permanent place of business is maintained at: 

- 
STREET CITY STATE ZIP CODE 

The following construction plant and equipment will be made available for the use on this 
contract: 

- 

In the event the contract is awarded the undersigned, surety bonds will be M s h e d  by: 

Experience of Contractor on other similar work (Mhimum of 5 years required): 

- -- -. 

-- 

6 .  We now have the following jobs under contract and bonded: 

JOB TOTAL CONTRACT PERCENT COMPLETED 
$- -7 Yo 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Aimo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Form of Proposal 

F P - 6  

7. FINANCIAL STATEMENT: 

Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of - 7 ---. 
This statement should be prepared by applicant, bookkeeper or accountant may be requested. 

LIABILITIES 

Cash in Bank, Notes Payable: 
Cash on Hand: (a) Banks-- 
- (b) Materialmen 

(c) Other --- 
Accounts Receivable Accounts Payable 
Including Retention: Including Retention: 
(a) Completed Contracts -- (a) Subcontractors --- 
(b) IJncompleted Contracts (b) Materialmen 
Other Accounts Receivable: Billing in Excess of Job Costs: 

-.- ----- 
Marketable Securities: Current Debt: @ue in 1 Year) 

(a) Equipment 
Material in stock not included (b) Real Estate 
in items abave: Income Tax Current- - 
(a) For Jobs Underway Automobiles 
(b) otller 
-- - 

Subtotal Current Assets Subtatal Current Liabilities 
$- -- $.-- 

-- 
Nates Receivable: Equipment Debt-Over 1 year: 

- - 
Cash Value Life Insurance: Real Estate Debt-Over 1 year: 

- 
Equipment at Rook Value: 

-- 
Real Estate at Book Value: Capital Stack:- --- 
(a) Business: Surplus and Undivided Profits: 
(b) Homestead: -- .--- 
(c) Investment: .--- 
Automobiles: 
Furniture and Fixtures: 

Total Assets: Total Liabilities:- - - 



C o l s  Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SM#KY20050822093 1 

A F F I D A V I T  

Form of Proposal 

FP - 7 

Comes the affiant and after having been duly sworn states as follows: 

1 .  That affiant is the contractor awarded a contract by Dexter-Almo Heights Water 
District. 

2. That all contractors and subcontractors employed, or that will be employed, under the 
provisions af this contract are in compliance with Kentucky requirements for Workers' 
Compensation Insurance according to KRS Chapter 342 and Unemployment Insurance 
according to KRS Chapter 341. 

Further, the affiant sayeth naught. 

By: 

Title: - --. 

Contractor: 

State of Kentucky 

County of 

Subscribed and sworn to before me by on this 

day of - --• 

My commission expires -- 

Notary Public, State at Large 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Form of Proposal 

FP - 8 

FORM OF PROPOSAL - SUBMITTAL DATA 

In addition to the requirements of this Form of Proposal, the following items must be received: 

1. List of Proposed Subcontractors, if applicable. 

2. List of Materials and Equipment, if applicable. 

3. Bid Guaranty in amount of no less than five percent (5%) of the TOTAL BII) AMOUNT. 



Coles Campg.nund Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

LIST OF PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS 
(Must Be Submitted With Bid) 

Form of Proposal 

F P - 9  

The following list of proposed subcontractors is required by the OWNER to be completely executed 
and submitted with each bidder's proposal. All subcontractors are subject to the approval of Dexter- 
Almo Heights Water District, Almo, Kentucky. If certain branches of the work are to be done by the 
Prime Contractor, so state. Failure to submit this list completely filled out may cause a rejection of 
the bidder's proposal. 

BRANCH OF WORK NAME OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

1. Trenching, Earthwork, Excavating - .-- 

2. Landscaping -. 



Coies Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Form of Proposal 

FP - I0 

LIST OF MATERVU, AND EQUIPMENT 

Bidders are hereby advised that this list shall be filled out completely by the apparent low bidder 
within one C 1) hour fiom the close of the official reading of the bids. 

The above requirement does not preclude any bidder from submitting this list, fully executed, at the 
time the bids are submitted. 

Each item listed under the different phases of construction must be clearly identified so that the 
Owner will definitely know what the bidder proposes to furnish. No material or equipment will be 
considered which is not equal to that specified. 

The use of manufacturer's dealer's name only or stating "as per plans and specifications" will not be 
considered as sufficient identification. 

Failure to submit a proper list may result in rejection of the bidder's proposal. 

ITEM MANUFACTURER MODEL OR TYPE 

1. PVC Pipe 

2. Gate Valves - 

3. Flushing Hydrants 

4. DI Pipe Fittings -- 

Revised 0713 1/06 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Contract Agreement 
CA- I 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 

AND CONTRACTOR 

THIS AGREEMENT, made the - day of ,2006 by and between 
--- ("Contractory'), and the DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER 

DISTRICT, ("Owner"), is to bind the parties hereto to the principles and terms set forth herein, and 
shall be binding upon the parties hereto. 

WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and Owner for the consideration hereinafter named, agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE No. 1 SCOPE OF WORK: 

The Contractor shall furnish all of the materials and perform all the Work described in the 
Specifications andlor shown on the Drawings entitled: Coles Campground Road Water Main 
Project which Specifications andfor Drawings are incorporated in and made a part thereof. 

ARTICLE No. 2 TIME OF COMPLETION: 

The Contractor must begin Work specified by the written Notice to Proceed from the Owner. 
Substantial Completion of the Work shall be seventy-five (75) calendar days after the issuance of the 
Notice to Proceed with Final Completion one-hundred and five (1 05) calendar days after the issuance 
of the Notice to Proceed. 

ARTICLE No. 3 LIQUIDATED DAMAGES: 

It is mutually understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that time is of the essence in 
the performance of this contract and that the Owner, the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District, will 
sustain substantial monetary and other damages in the event of a failure or delay by the Contractor in 
the completion of the Work. It is further understood and agreed upon and made part of this Contract 
that the Work must be begun, performed, and completed without delay by the Contractor and if the 
Contractor fails to begin, perform without interruption, and complete said Work in due and proper 
time, the Contractor may be declared in default of this Agreement. If the Work is not substantially 
camplete within the time required in ArticIe No. 2 of this Agreement, the Contractor shall pay to the 
Owner, as liquidated damages for delay and not as a penalty, the sum of one hundred dollars ($1 00) 
for every day after the date for Substantial Completion until construction is in fact substantially 
complete. If the Work is not finally complete within the time required in Article No. 2 of this 
Agreement, the Contractor shall pay to the Owner, as liquidated damages far delay and not as a 
penalty, the sum of fifty dollars ($50) for every day after the date for final completion until 
construction is in fact finally complete. This provision for liquidated damages is intended to 
compensate the Owner for delay only and shall not preclude the Owner from making claims for other 
damages. 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAWKY20050822093 1 

Contract Agreement 
CA - 2 

If the Work is not commenced by the Contractor at the time specified in Article No. 2 of this 
Agreement, then the Contractor and its surety or sureties shall be liable for and pay to the Owner all 
damages sustained by reason of such failure or breach of contract and the Owner may immediately 
relet the Work. 

ARTICLE No. 4 THE CONTRACT AMOUNT: 

Subject to additions and deductions for Change Orders made in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, the Owner shall pay the Contractor as full consideration for the Contractor's satisfactory 
performance of the Contract obligations for the unit price of Dollars and Cents 
per linear foot of &inch water main system laid ($ /If of water main laid) totaling an estimated 
sum of; - Dollars and Cents ($ ) for the base bid; and for 
the unit price of Dollars and Cents per linear foot of 6-inch water main system 
laid ($ /If of water mainlaid) totaling an estimated sum of; --- Dollars 
and Cents ($ ) for the base bid; and for the unit price of Dollars and 

Cents per linear foot of 4-inch water main system laid ($ If of water main laid) 
totaling an estimated sum of; .- Dollars and Cents ($ ) for the 
alternate bid; all totaling an estimated sum of Dollars and Cents 
($ 2. 

mTICLE No. 5 PROPOSED PAYMENTS: 

The Owner shall make periodic partial payments in accordance with the Kentucky Infrastructure 
Requirements for Work satisfactorily completed and for materials suitably stored at the site of the 
Work as estimated by the Consultant, less retainage and the aggregate of previous payments. 

ARTICLE No. 6 ACCEPTANCE AND FINAZ, PAYMENT: 

Final payment shall be due thirty (30) days afier Final Completion of the Work, provided, that all 
Work has been fully completed in accordance with the Contract Documents as evidenced by a 
certificate by the Consultant for the project, and acceptance by the Owner. 

The Contractor shall submit with the final estimate evidence satisfactory to the Consultant that all 
payrolls, material bills and other indebtedness connected with the Work have been paid or that 
provisions for the satisfaction thereof have been made. If, after the Work has been substantially 
completed, final completion of the Work is delayed through no fault of the Contractor, the h e r  may 
pay to the Contractor from the remaining balance of knds for this Agreement a sum equal to the value 
of that portion of the Work fully compIeted and accepted by the Owner as provided in this Agreement. 

ARTZC1,E No. 7 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: 

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, all Addenda, the Contractor's Form of Proposal, 
the Special Conditions, the Contractor's Bonds, the Specifications, the Drawings and Change Orders 
issued after execution of the Contract for the Work described in Article No. 1 of this Agreement, all of 
which are incorporated in and made a part hereof by reference, and which shall be binding upon the 
Contractor and Owner. 

The Specifications and Drawings for this Work include the following: 

Specifications: Advertisement for Bids through 02667-7 
Drawings: Cover Sheet through Sheet 6 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Contract Agreement 
C A - 3  

ARTICLE No. 8 CONTRACT ADJUSTMENTS: 

The Owner, without invalidating this Agreement may make adjustments to the Work as provided by 
KFtS 45A.200 (I), and may order extra Work or make changes by altering, adding to or deducting 
from the Work. All such Work shall he executed and paid for in accordance with the Kentucky 
Infrastructure Requirements. 

ARTICLE No. 9 SPECIAL NOTICE: 

The Contractor hereby certifies that it is fully informed of the conditions relating to construction and 
labor under which the Work under this Agreement is to be performed, and agrees that it shall employ 
methods and means in carrying out the Work so as not to interfere with or interrupt the Work of any 
other Contractor working odor adjacent to the site for this Work. Contractor further agrees that it 
shall employ methods and means to minimize interference or interruption of any business or resident 
along the route of this project and that all disrupted properties, driveways, yards, fences, fields, etc ... 
will be restored to pre-construction conditions. 

ARTIC1,E No. 10 OWNER'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT: 

This contract may be terminated for the convenience of the Water District or for default by the 
Contractor. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF this Agreement is executed in ,  three (3) counterparts, each one of which 
shall be deemed an original and adequate proof of this Agreement, on the date and year first herein 
before written. 

WITNESS: CONTRACTOR: -- 

BY: - 

printed name 

TITLE: -- 

OWNER : Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 

printed name 

Revised 07-3 1-06 
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Special Conditions 
Page 1 

FLINT ROAD/WEST FORK ROAD WATER MAIN EXTENSION 
DEXTER-ALMO HEIGEiTS WATER DISTRICT 

DEXTERJALMO, KY 

INDEX TO SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

Scope 
General 
Division of Specifications 
Time for Completion 
Liquidated Damages 
Conduct of Personnel 
Storage of Materials 
Temporary Field OEce 
Temporary Signs 
Interpretations 
Conflict 
Change Orders 
Barricades 
Access to Site 
Workman's Parking 
Existing Utilities 
Utilities 
Plan of Operation 
Codes and Ordinances 
Defmitians 
Certificates 
Restroom Facilities 
Builder's Risk Insurance 
Layout of Work 
Shop Drawings 
Hazardous Materials 
Payment & Performance Bondshsurance Certificates 
Contractors Qualifications 
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Special Conditions 
Page 2 

1. SCOPE 

These Conditions shall apply to all Contract Documents. 

GENERAL 

A. These Specifications and Drawings accompanying the Bid describe the work to be 
done and the materials to be furnished for the Coles Campground Road Water 
Main Project, in the DexterIAlmo Heights Water District, Kentucky. 

B. Site Visit: Bidders, before submitting proposals, shall visit and exaxnine the site to 
satis@ themselves as to the nature and scope of the construction and any 
difficulties attending the execution. The submission of a proposal will be ' 

construed as evidence that a visit and examination has been made. Later claims 
for labor, equipment, or materials required or difficulties encountered which could 
have been foreseen had such an examination been made, will not be recognized. 
Contact person: Kim H. Oatman (contact through Water District). 

C .  It is contemplated that Contracts will be awarded as soon as possible after 
submission of bids. After award, submit materials lists for approval. Upon 
approval, place orders for primary materials so that no delay will be caused by 
failure to have these materials at job site on schedule. 

D. All work shall be performed in such a manner so as not to interfere with normal 
routines of the property owners within construction limits any more than 
necessary. Consult with the Engineer or Owner if problems should arise with 
property owners during construction. 

3. DIVISION OF SPECIFICATIONS 

Division of Specifications into sections is done for convenience of reference and is not 
intended to control Contractor in dividing work among Subcontractors or to limit scope 
of work performed by any trade under any given section. The General Contractor shall 
have full responsibility for the complete construction of this project and hereinafter 
thraughout the specifications shall be called the Contractor. 
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Special Conditions 
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4. TTME FOR COMPLETION 

Work under the Contract shall commence on the date the Owner directs the Contractor, 
by issuance of a work order, to start work under the Contract. The Contractor must begin 
Work specified by the written Notice to Proceed from the Owner. Substantial 
Completion of the work shall be within seventy five (75) calendar days of issuance of a 
Notice to Proceed to the contractor. Final completion shall be within one hundred and 
five (1 05) calendar days. 

Extensions of T i e  of the Final Completion Date will be considered for fmal seeding of 
the proiect if Contractor makes written request based on weather conditions. 

5. LIQUIDATED DAMAGE 

If the Work is not substantially complete within the time required in Article No. 4 of 
these Special Conditions, the Contractor shall pay to the Owner, as Liquidated damages 
for delay and not as a penalty, the sum of one hundred dollars ($100.00) for every day 
after the date for Substantial Completion until construction is in fact substantially 
complete. If the Work is not finally complete within the time required in Article No. 4 of 
these Special Conditions, the Contractor shall pay to the Owner, as liquidated damages 
for delay and not as a penalty, the sum of fifty dollars ($50.00) for every day after the date 
for final completion until construction is in fact finally complete. In no event shall 
liquidated damages for delay in Final Completion be due before the date required for 
Final Completion in Article No. 4 of these Special Conditions. This provision for 
liquidated damages is intended to compensate the Owner for delay only and shall not 
preclude the Owner from making claims for other damages. 

6.  CONDUCT OF PERSONNEL EMPLOYED ON TKIS PROJECT 

Construction workers employed on this project are under no circumstances permitted to 
use or occupy any of the property other that designated easements without definite and 
written permission by Property Owner and subsequent approval by the Owner. 
Consumption of alcohol on the job by any worker is strictly prohibited. Any personnel 
under the influence of alcohol or drugs on the job site at any time will be subject to 
dismissal by Contractor. Contractor shall post necessary signs and enforce "No Drinking 
or Drugs" law as outlined in the Kentucky Revised Statutes 

7. STORAGE OF MATERLALS 

The Contractor shall be responsible for proper, secure and adequate storage of materials 
within construction limits. Materials stored on-site are considered the Contractors 
responsibility and liability until all such materials are properly constmcted in place and 
accepted by the Owner. 
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8. TEMPORARY FIELD OFFICE 

The Contractor will not be required to provide and maintain a temporary field office at 
the site during the construction of the project. 

9. TEMPORARY SIGNS 

Signs of advertisement: Not to be displayed without approval. 

10. CONFLICTS 

If there is any conflict between the Specifications, the Drawings, the Specifications shall 
govern. 

Contractor is hereby put on notice that it is in his contractual obligation to adjust 
differences between his subcontractors. Attempts to have Dexter-Alma Heights Water 
District settle disputes between Contractor and Subcontractors will not be given 
consideration. 

12. CHANGE ORDERS 

Change orders, which may be issued subsequent to Contract Documents, are subject to 
written approval by the Dexter-Almo Heights Water District. 

13. BARRICADES 

The Contractor and all Subcontractors shall be required to comply strictly with all codes, 
provisions and regulations with respect to the erection and maintenance of all necessary 
barricades, lights, etc. 

14. ACCESS TO SITE 

The entrance to the construction site for all contractors shall be by means approved by the 
Dexter-Alma Heights Water District. The Contractor shall be responsible for any and all 
damage to the entire satisfaction of the Engineer. 

1 5. WORKER'S PARKING 

Parking shall be provided for all workers on this project by the Owner. Parking facilities 
shall1 be designated by the Owner. Workers shall not park on properties that have not 
been designated and approved by the Owner. 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Pmject 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water D i i c t  
SAUIKY20050822093 1 

Special Conditions 
Page 5 

16. EXISTING UTILITIES 

A. Existing utilities where shown on drawings, are located as accurately as possible 
from available information, however, it shall be the contractor's responsibility to 
verifjr exact locations and elevations where required to complete the work without 
damaging existing utilities or underground piping. 

B. Digging near existing utilities shall be done by hand in order to avoid damage to 
utilities. 

17. TEMPORARY UTILITIES 

Electric power for all purposes of the Contractor and Subcontractors shall be provided by 
the Contractor. It will further be his responsibility to pay all cast involved including cost 
of power, equipment, meters, and any other item required. 

Contractor responsible for extension cords, hoses, etc. 

1 8. PLAN OF OPERATION 

Prior ta the beginning of construction, the Contractor shall umn request bv the Owner, 
submit a plan of operations he proposes to follow in constructing this project. 

19. CODES AND ORDINANCES 

A. All branches of the work shown on the plans or specified, whether specifically 
mentioned or not, shall be executed in strict compliance with all national codes 
when same have application. 

B. All Bidders must be qualified, and meet all requirements provided andlor required 
under any local andlor state statute, code ordinances, or rule governing the 
performance of the type work for which he submits bid, and be able to submit bid, 
and be able to submit proof thereof upon request. 

20. DEFINITIONS 

The following definitions shall apply, 

A. The term "Architect7' or "Architecmngineer" or "Engineer" or "Con~ultant'~ or 
"Chief Engineer" as used throughout the specifications and contract documents 
means Kim or Susan Oatman or their duly authorized agent. 

B. The term "Owner" means Dexter-Aho Heights Water District, h o  KY. 
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21. CERTIFICATES 

A. Plumbing: When applicable, the Contractor shall fbmish the Owner with a 
Certificate of inspection and approval from the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The 
Contractor SHALL be responsible for arranging for necessary permit from State. 

B. Electrical: When applicable, the Contractor shall arrange for electrical inspection 
upon final completion of the Work of this Contract. 

22. RESTROOM FACILITIES 

Contractor shall provide adequate restroom facilities as required. 

23. BUILDER'S RISK INSURANCE 

Builders Risk Insurance will be required on this project. 

24. LAYOUTOFWORK 

The Contractor shall use existing, established and permanent benchmarks to which easy 
access may be had during the progress of the work, and to layout the facilities. The 
Contractor shall be responsible for all lines, levels and measurement of all work executed 
under this contract. The Contractor shall verify the figures before laying out the work and 
will be held responsible for any error resulting from the failure to do so. The Contractor 
shall be prepared to guarantee to each of the Subcontractors the dimensions which they 
may require for the layout of their work. 

25. SHOP DRAWING 

Each and every shop drawing or setting drawing submitted to the owner for review shall 
bear a stamp of certification over the Contractor's signature indicated that the drawings 
being submitted have been thoroughly pre-checked and approved by the Contractor. 
Drawings which do not bear such certification will be returned for pre-checking in 
accordance with this requirement. Any delay in securing final review of such drawings 
shall be judged as the fault of the Contractor. 

A. In the event the Contractor encounters material reasonably believed to be asbestos, 
which has not been rendered harmless, the Contractor shall immediately stop work in 
the area affected and report the condition to the Engineer and the Owner. The work 
in the affected area shall not thereafter be resumed, if in fact, the material is asbestos, 
until it has been rendered harmless. Removal and disposal of any hazardous waste 
shall be done at the Contractor's expense, 
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27. PAYMENT & PERFORMANCE BONDS/INSURANCE CERTIFICA'IES 

Payment and Performance Bonds for the full amount of the contract are required on this 
project. Payment and Performance Bonds and Insurance Certificates are required within one 
week after bid opening. Failure to meet this deadline may result in the rejection of bid. 

28. CONTRACTOR'S QUALIFICATIONS 

The Contractor shall have a minimum of 5-years experience on water main and or pipeline 
Work for TJtility Companies in order to be considered a qualified Bidder. 

29. CONTRACTOR'S EQUIPMENT 

It is very critical that & disturbed properties, including driveways, yards, fences, fields, etc. 
be returned to original pre-construction conditions. Therefore, contractor's equipment shall 
be limited to trenching machines andor small bucket backhoes. Trackhoes and large dozers 
shall not be permitted. 
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PART 1 

SECTION 01028 
C W G E  OIUIER PROCEDURE 

GENERAL 

1.01 SUMMARY 

A. Make such changes in the Work, in the Contract Sum, in the Contract 
Time of Completion, or any combination thereof, as described in the 
Change Orders signed by the Owner and the Contractor. 

1.02 PROCESSING CHANGE ORDERS 

A. Change orders will be numbered in sequence and dated. The change order 
will describe the changes, changes in the Contract Surn, changes in the 
Contract Time of Completion and will be signed by the Owner and the 
Contractor. Request for estimates for possible changes are not to be 
considered Change Orders or direction to proceed with the proposed 
changes. 

B. Change orders will be written using AIA Document G.701. 

END OF SECTION 
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PART 1 

SECTION 0 1039 
COORDINATION AND MEETINGS 

GENERAL 

1.0 1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Coordination. 

B. Field engineering. 

C. Pre-construction conference. 

D. Progress meetings. 

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS 

A. Section 01 300 - Submittals. 

1.03 COORDINATION 

A. Coordinate scheduling, submittals, and Work of the various Sections of 
specifications to assure efficient and orderly sequence of installation of 
interdependent construction elements. 

B. Verify that there are no conflicts with the proposed water main system 
with other utilities. Coordinate work of various Sections having 
interdependent responsibilities for installing, connecting to, and placing in 
service such equipment. 

C. Coordinate completion and clean up of all Work in preparation for 
Substantial Completion. 

1.04 FIELD ENGINEERING 

A. Provide field engineering services as required. Establish locations and 
depths of water main utilizing recognized engineering survey practices. 

B. Contractor shall locate all utilities prior to excavation. 
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1.05 PRECONSTRUCTION CONFEENCE 

A. Owner will schedule a conference after Notice of Award. 

R. Attendance Required: General Contractor and primary subcontractors. 

C. Agenda: 

Execution of Owner-Contractor Agreement. 
Confirm submission of executed bonds and insurance 

certificates. 
Submission of list of Subcontractors, list of products, schedule of 
vaIues, and progress schedule. 
Designation of personnel representing the parties in Contract. 
Procedures and processing of field decisions, submittals, 
substitutions, applications for payments, proposal request, Change 
Orders, and Contract close-out procedures. 
Scheduling. 
Security and housekeeping 
Use of easements and properties 
Temporary utilities 
Procedures for testing. 
Procedures for maintaining record documents. 
Requirements for activating system. 
Inspection and acceptance of work and properties during and after 
coristruction period. 

1.06 PROGRESS MEETINGS 

A. Schedule and administer meetings throughout progress of the Work at 
maximum monthly intervals. 

B. Make arrangements for meetings, prepare agenda with copies for 
participants, preside at meetings, record minutes, and distribute copies 
within days to Owner, participants, and those affected by decisions made. 

C. Attendance Required: Job superintendent, major Subcontractors and 
suppliers, as appropriate to agenda topics for each meeting. 
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D. Agenda 

Review minutes of previous meetings. 
Review of Work progress. 
Field observations, problems, and decisions. 
Identification of problems which impede planned progress. 
Review of submittals schedule and status of submittals. 
Review of off-site fabrication and delivery schedules. 
Maintenance af progress schedule. 
Corrective measures to regain projected schedules. 
Planned progress during succeeding work period. 
Coordination of projected progress. 
Maintenance of quality and work standards. 
Effect of proposed changes on progress schedule and coordination. 
Other business relating to Work. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

Not used. 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

Not used. 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 01 100 
SUMMARY 

PART 1 - GENEML 

1.1 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

A. Project Identification: Project consists of waterline extension along Coles 
Campground Road. 

1. Project Location: Dexter-Almo, Kentucky. - 

2. Owner: Dexter-Aho Heights Water District 

B. Engineer Identification: All references to the term "Architect" shall be understood 
to mean design professional in which this project is ''Engineer". The Contract 
Documents, dated July 23, 2006, were prepared for Project by the Engineer, 
Kim Oatman, 133 Pine Creek Drive, Paducah, Kentucky. 

C. The Work of the Base Bid consists of: 

1. All necessary labor, tools, equipment and materials required to complete 
construction of 2,630 linear feet of 8 inch PVC, 1,995 linear feet of 6 inch 
PVC and 1,475 linear feet of 4 inch PVC water main extension and all 
related Work as shown on the drawings along Coles Campground Road, 
Mallory Court, and North 16' (l3rin.n Rd). 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 0 1300 
SUBMITTALS 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.0 1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Submittal procedures 

B. Construction progress schedules 

C.  Proposed products list 

D. Shop drawings 

E. Product data 

F. Samples 

G. Manufacturers' instructions 

H. Manufacturers' certificates 

I. Canstruction photographs 

1.02 RE1,ATED SECTIONS 

A. Section 01400 - Quality Control: Manufacturers; field services and 
reports. 

B. Section 01700 - Cantsact Closeout: Cantract warranty and manufacturers' 
certificates closeout submittals. 

1.03 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES 

A. Transmit each submittal with AIA Form (3810 Architect/Engineer 
accepted f m .  
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R. Sequentially number the transmittal forms. Re-submittals to have original 
number with an alphabetic suffix. 

C .  Identify Project, Contractor, Subcontractor or supplier; pertinent drawing 
sheet and detail number(s), and specification Section number, as 
appropriate. 

D. Apply Contractor's stamp, signed or initialed certifying that review, 
verification of Products required, field dimensions, adjacent construction 
Work, and coordination of information is in accordance with the 
requirements of the Work and Contract Documents. 

E. Schedule submittals to expedite the Project and deliver to owner at 
business address. Coordinate submission of related items. 

F. Identify variations fiom Contract Documents and Product or system 
limitations, which may be detrimental to successful performance of the 
completed Work. 

G.  Provide space far owner review sign off. 

H. Revise and resubmit submittals as required and identify all changes made 
since previous submittal. 

I. Distribute copies of reviewed submittals to concerned parties. Instruct 
parties to.prompt1y report any inability to comply with provisions. 

1.04 CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS SCHEDULES 

A. Subrnit initial progress schedule in duplicate within 7 days after date of 
Owner-Contractor Agreement. 

B. Revise and resubmit as  required. 

C .  Submit revised schedules with each Application for Payment, identifjrlng 
changes since previous version. 

D. Show complete sequence of construction by activity, identifying Work of 
separate stages and other logically grouped activities. Indicate the early 
and late start, early and late finish, float dates, and duration. 

E. Indicate estimated percentage of completion for each item of Work at each 
submission. 
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F. Indicate submittal dates required for shop drawings, product data, samples, 
and product delivery dates, including those finished by Owner and under 
Allowances. 

1.05 PROPOSED PRODUCTS LIST 

A. Within one (1) hour fkom the close of the official reading of the bids, 
submit camplete list of major products proposed for use, with name of 
manufacturer, trade name, and model number of each product. 

B. For products specified only by reference standards, give manufacturer, 
trade name, model or catalog designation, and reference standards. 

1.06 SHOP DRAWINGS 

A. Submit the number of copies, which the Contractor requires, plus 3 copies, 
which will be retained by the Engineer and Owner respectively. 

B. After review, reproduce and distribute in accordance with Article on 
Procedures above and for Record Documents described in Section -01700 
Contract Closeout. 

1.07 PRODUCT DATA 

A. Submit the number of copies, which the Contractor requires, plus 3 copies, 
which will be retained by the Engineer and Owner respectively. 

B. Mark each copy to identify applicable products, models, options, and other 
data. Supplement manufacturer's standard data to provide information 
unique to this project. 

C. After review, distribute in accordance with Article on Procedures above 
and provide copies for Record Documents described in Section 01700 - 
Contract Closeout. 

1.08 MANUFACTURERS INSTRUCTIONS 

A. When specified in individual specification Sections, submit 
manufacturer's printed instruction for delivery, storage, assembly, 
installation, start-up, adjusting, and finishing, in quantities specified for 
Product Data. 

B. Identify conflicts between manufacturer's instructions and Contract 
Documents. 
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1.09 MANUFACTURER'S CERTIFICATES 

A. When specified in individual specification Sections, submit 
manufacturer's certificate to Owner for review, in quantities specified for 
Product Data. 

B. Indicate material or product conforms to or exceeds specified 
requirements. Submit supporting reference data, affidavits, and 
certifications as appropriate. 

C .  Certificates may be recent of previous test results on material or Product, 
but must be acceptable to Owner. 

E%D OF SECTION 
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SECTION 0 1370 
SCHEDULE OF VALTJES 

PART 1 GENERAL 

1.01 SUMMARY 

A. Unless stipulated in the Construction Agreement, provide a detailed 
breakdown of the agreed Contract Sum showing values allocated to each 
of the various parts of the Work, as defined on MA form G702. 

1.02 SUBMITTALS 

A. Pay applications shall be an AL4 form G702. Prior to submitting the first 
application for payment, submit a proposed schedule of values to the 
Owner for approval. 

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. When so required by the Owner, provide copies of the subcontracts or 
other data acceptable to the Owner substantiating the sums described. 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 0 1 400 
QUALITY CONTROL 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.0 1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Quality assurance and control of installation. 

B . References 

C. Field samples 

I). Inspection and testing laboratory services 

E. Manufacturer's field services and reports 

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS 

A. Section 01300 - Submittals: Submission of Manufacturer's Instructians and 
Certificates. 

B. Section 01600 - Material and Equipment: Requirements for material and product 
quality. 

1.03 QUALITY ASSURANCEICONTROL OF INSTALLATION 

A. Monitor quality control over suppliers, manufacturers, products, services, site 
conditions and workmanship to produce Work of specified quality. 

B. Comply fully with manufacturers instructions, including each step in sequence. 

C .  Should manufacturer's instructions conflict with Contract Documents, request 
clarification fiom Owner before proceeding. 

D. Comply with specified standards as a minimum quality for the Work except when 
more stringent tolerances, codes, or specified requirements indicate higher 
standards or more precise workmanship. 

E. Perform work by persons qualified to produce workmanship of specified quality. 
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A. Conform to reference standard by date of issue current on date of Contract 
Documents. 

B. Obtain copies of standards when required by Contract Documents. 

C .  Should specified reference standards conflict with Contract Documents, request 
clarification for Owner before proceeding. 

D. The contractual relationship of the parties to the Contract shall not be altered fiom 
the Contract Documents by mention or inference otherwise in any referenced 
document. 

1.05 FIELD SAMPLES - NOT APPLICABLE 

1.06 INSPECTION AND TESTING LABORATORY SERVICES 

A. The contractor shall obtain and pay for all necessary municipal or state 
inspections and permits and make such tests as called for by the regulations of 
such authorized representative of such authorities. 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 01 500 
TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 SUMMARY 

A. This Section includes requirements for temporary facilities and controls, 
including temporary utilities, support facilities, and security and protection 
facilities. 

1.2 DEFIN'ITIONS - NOT REQUIRED 

1.3 USE CHARGES 

A. General: Cost or use charges for temporary facilities are not chargeable to 
Owner or Engineer and shall be included in the Contract Sum. Allow other 
entities to use temporary services and facilities without cost, including, but not 
limited to, Owner's construction forces, occupants of Project, Engineering, 
testing, and inspecting agencies and personnel of authorities having jurisdiction. 

B. Water Service: Water shall be provided at the sole expense of the Contractor. 
Owner shall not incur use charges for Contractor's water usage. 

C. Electric Power Service: Electric power shall be provided by the Contractor. 
Owner shall nat incur any use charges for the Contractor's electric usage. 

1.4 QIJALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Standards: Comply with ANSI A10.6, NECA's "Temporary Electrical 
Facilities," and NFPA 241. 

1 .  Electric Service: Comply with NECA, NEMA, and UL standards and 
regulations for temporary electric service. Imtall service to comply with 
NmPA 70. 

B. Tests and Inspections: Arrange for authorities having jurisdiction to test and 
inspect each temporary utility before use. Obtain required certifications and 
permits. 
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1.5 PROJECT CONDITIONS 

A. Conditions of Use: The following conditions apply to use of temporary services 
and facilities by all parties engaged in the Work: 

1. Keep temporary services and facilities clean and neat. 
2.  Relocate temporary services and facilities as required by progress of the 

Work. 

PART 2 - PRODTJCTS 

2.1 MATERIALS 

A. General: Provide new materials. Undamaged, previously used materials in 
serviceable condition may be used if approved by Engineer. Provide materials 
suitable for use intended. 

B. Portable Chain-Link Fencing: Minimum 2-inch ')-gage, galvanized steel, chain- 
link fabric fencing; minimum 6 feet high with galvanized steel pipe posts; 
minimum 2-3/8-inch-OD line posts and 2-7/8-inch- OD corner and pull posts, 
with 1-518-inch- OD top and bottom rails. Provide galvanized steel bases for 
supporting posts. 

C. Wood Enclosure Fence: Plywood, 6 feet high, framed with four 2-by-4-inch 
rails, with preservative-treated wood posts spaced not more than 8 feet apart. 

D. Tarpaulins: Fire-resistive labeled with flame-spread rating of 15 or less. 

E. Water: Potable. 

A. Fire Extinguishers: Hand carried, portable, UL, rated. Provide class and 
extinguishing agent as indicated or a combination of extinguishers of NFPA- 
recommended classes for exposures. 

1. Comply with NFPA 10 and NFPA 241 for classification, extinguishing 
agent, and size required by location and class of fire exposure. 

B. Electrical Outlets: Properly configured, NEMA-polarized outlets to prevent 
insertion of 1 10- to 120-V plugs into higher-voltage outlets; equipped with 
ground-fault circuit interrupters, reset button, and pilot light. 



Coles Campground Water Main Project 

Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Section 01 500 

Page 3 

C. Power Distribution System Circuits: Where permitted and overhead and exposed 
for surveillance, wiring circuits, not exceeding 125-V ac, 20-A rating, and lighting 
circuits may be nonmetallic sheathed cable. 

PART 3 - EXECTITION 

3.1 INSTALLATION, GENERAL 

A. Locate facilities where they will serve Project adequately and result in minimum 
interference with performance of the Work. Relocate and modify facilities as 
required. 

B. Provide each facility ready for use when needed to avoid delay. Maintain and 
modify as required. Do not remove until facilities are no longer needed or are 
replaced by authorized use of completed permanent facilities. 

3.2 TEMPORARY UTILITY INSTALLATION 

A. Water Service: Use of Owner's existing water service facilities will be 
permitted, as long as facilities are cleaned and maintained in a condition 
acceptable to Owner. At Substantial Completion, restore these facilities to 
condition existing before initial use. 

1. Provide rubber hoses as necessary to serve Project site. 
2. Where installations below an outlet might be damaged by spillage or 

leakage, provide a drip pan of suitable size to minimize water damage. 
Drain accumulated water promptly from pans. 

B. Electric Power Service: Use of Owner's existing electric power service will be 
permitted, as long as equipment is maintained in a condition acceptable to 
Owner. 

C. Electric Distribution: Provide receptacle outlets adequate for connection of 
power tools and equipment. 

1. Provide waterproof connectors to connect separate lengths of electrical 
power cords if single lengths will not reach areas where construction 
activities are in progress. Do not exceed safe length-voltage ratio. 

3.3 SECURITY AND PROTECTION FACIIJTIES INSTALLATION 

A. Barricades, Warning Signs, and Lights: Comply with standards and code 
requirements for erecting structurally adequate barricades. Paint with 
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appropriate colors, graphics, and warning signs to infarm personnel and public 
of possible hazard. Where appropriate and needed, provide lighting, including 
flashing red or amber lights. 

3.4 OPERATION, 'TERMINATION, AND REMOVAL 

A. Supervision: Enfarce strict discipline in use of temporary facilities. To 
minimize waste and abuse, limit availability of temporary facilities to essential 
and intended uses. 

B. Maintenance: Maintain facilities in good operating condition until removal. 
Protect fiom damage caused by £reezing temperatures and similar elements. 

1. Prevent water-filled piping fiom freezing. Maintain rnarkers for 
underground lines. Protect from damage during excavation operations. 

END QF SECTION 
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SECTION 01 600 
MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1.1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Products 
B. Transportation and handling. 
C. Storage and protection. 
D. Product Options 
E. Substitutions 

1.2 RELATED SECTION 

A. Section 01400 - Quality Control: Product quality monitoring. 

1.3 PRODUCTS 

A. Products: Means new material, machinery, components, equipment, fixtures 
and systems forming the work. Does not include machinery and equipment used 
for preparation, fabrication, conveying and erection of the Work. Products may 
also include existing materials or components required for use. 

B. Do not use materials and equipment removed fiom existing premises except as 
specifically permitted by the Contract Documents. 

C. Provide interchangeable components of the same manufacturer for similar 
components. 

1.4 TRANSPORTATION AND HANDLING 

A. Transport and handle products in accordance with manufacturer's instructions. 

B. Promptly inspect shipments to assure that products comply with requirements, 
quantities are correct, and products are undamaged. 

C .  Provide equipment and personnel to handle products by methods to prevent 
soiling, disfigurement or damage. 
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STORAGE AND PRO'IECTION 

Store and protect products in accordance with manufacturer's instructions, with 
seals and labels intact and legible. Store sensitive products in weather-tight, 
climate controlled enclosures. 

For exterior storage of fabricated products, place on sloped supports, above 
ground. 

Provide off-site storage and protection when site does not permit on-site storage 
and protection. 

Cover products subject to deterioration with impervious sheet covering. Provide 
ventilation to avoid condensation. 

Store loose granular materials on solid flat surfaces in a well-drained area. 
Provide mixing with foreign matter. 

Provide equipment and personnel to store products by methods to prevent 
soiling, disfigurement, or damage. 

Arrange storage of products ta permit access for inspection. Periodically inspect 
to assure products are undamaged and are maintained under specified 
conditions. 

1.6 PRODUCT OF OP'IIONS 

A. Products specified by reference standards or by description only: Any product 
meeting those Standards or description may be used, provided they are 
preapproved by the water district. 

B. Products specified by naming one or more manufacturers: No options or 
substitutions will be allowed. 

C .  Products specified by naming one or more mandacturers with a Provision for 
Substitutions: 
Substitutions: Submit a request for substitution for any manufacturer not 
named. 
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1.7 SUBSTITUTIONS 

A. Request for substitutions must be submitted in writing no less than 5 working 
days prior to date bids are due. 

B. Substitutions may be considered when a product becomes unavailable through 
no fault of the Contractor, 

C. Document each request with complete data substantiating compliance of 
proposed Substitution with Contract Documents. 

D. A request constitutes a representation that the Bidder: 

1. Has investigated proposed product and determined that it meets or exceeds 
the quality level of the specified product. 

2. Will provide same warranty for the Substitution as for specified product. 

3. Will coordinate installation and make changes to other Work, which may 
be required for the work to be complete with no additional cost to the 
Owner. 

4. Waives claims for additional costs or time extension, which may 
subsequently become apparent. 

5. Will reimburse Owner for review or redesign services associated with 
approval by Authorities. 

E. Substitutions will not be considered when they are indicated or implied on shop 
drawing or Product data submittals, without separate written request, or when 
acceptance will require revision to the Contract Documents. 

F. Substitution Submittal Procedure: 

1. Submit three copies of request for Substitution for Consideration. Limit 
each request to one proposed Substitution. 

2. Submit shop drawings, product data, and certified test results at testing to 
the proposed product equivalence. 

3. The Owner will notify Contractor, in writing, of decision to accept or 
reject request. 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 0 1 700 
CONTRACT CLOSEOUT 

PART 1 - GENERAL 

1 .O1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Closeout procedures 

B. Final cleaning 

C. Adjusting 

D. Project record documents 

E. Operation and Maintenance data 

F. Warranties 

G. Spare parts and maintenance materials 

1.02 CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES 

A. Submit written certification that Contract Documents have been reviewed, Work 
has been inspected, and that Work is complete in accordance with Contract 
Documents and ready for Owner's inspection. 

B. Provide submittals and As-Built Drawings to Owner that are required by 
Government or other authorities. 

C. Submit final Application for Payment identifjmg total adjusting Contract Sum, 
previous payments and sum remaining due. 

D. Owner will occupy and operate equipment upon final certification by the State of 
Kentucky. 

E. Provide AfXidavit that all project debts have been paid in full and no liens exist. 
Exact format for Affidavit to be provided at a later date. 

1.03 FINAL, CLEANING 

A. Execute final cleaning prior to final inspection. 
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Clean surfaces exposed to view; remove temporary labels, stains and foreign 
substances, polish transparent and glossy surfaces. 

Clem equipment and fixtures to a sanitary condition. 

Clean operating equipment. 

Remove waste, surplus materials, rubbish and construction materials from site. 
Contractor will remove all waste from site within 48 hours of being declared 
waste or requested by Owner. 

ADJUSTING 

Adjust operating Products and equipment to ensure smooth and unhindered 
operation. 

PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

Maintain on site, one set of the following record documents; record actual 
revisions to the Work: 

1. Contract Drawings 

2. Specifications 

3. Addenda 

4. Change Orders and other Modifications to the Contract. 

5. Reviewed shop drawings, product data and samples. 

Store Record Documents separate fkom documents used for construction. 

Record information concurrent with construction progress. 

Specifications: Legibly mark and record at each Product section, description of 
actual Products installed, including the following: 

1. Manufacturer's name and product model and number. 

2. Product substitutions or alternates utilized. 

3. Changes made by Addenda and Modifications. 
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R,ecord Documents and Shop Drawings: Legibly mark each item to record actual 
construction. 

Submit documents to Owner with claim for final Application for Payment 

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA 

Submit three sets prior to final inspection bound in 8-112 x 11 inch (216 x 279 
rnm) text pages, three D side ring capacity expansion binders with durable plastic 
covers. 

Prepare binder covers with printed title "OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE 
INSTRUCTIONS". title of project, and subject matter of binder when multiple 
binders are required. 

Internally subdivide the binder contents with permanent page dividers, logically 
organized as described below; with tab titling clearly printed under reinforced 
laminated plastic tabs. 

Contents: Prepare a Table of Contents for each volume, with each Product or 
system description identified, typed on 24-pound white paper. 

Part I: Directory, listing names, addresses, and telephone numbers of 
ArchitectEngineer. Contractor, Subcontractors, and major equipment suppliers. 

Part 2: Operation and maintenance instructions, arranged by system and 
subdivided. For each category, identify names, addresses, and telephone numbers 
of subcontractors and suppliers. Identify the following: 

1. Significant design criteria. 

2. List of equipment. 

3. Parts list for each component. 

4. Operating instructions. 

5 .  Maintenance instructions for equipment and systems. 

6.  Maintenance instructions for special finishes, including recommended 
cleaning methods and materials and special precautions identifying 
detrimental agents. 
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G. Part 3: Project documents and certificates, including the following: 

1. Shop drawings and product data. 

2. Power quality test results (including any required grounding tests). 

3. Certificates. 

4. Photocopies of warranties and bonds. 

)-I. Submit one copy of completed volumes in fmal form 15 days prior to final 
inspection. This copy will be returned after final inspection with Owner's 
comments. Revise content of documents as required prior to final submittal. 

I. Submit final volurnes revised within ten days after final inspection. 

1.07 WARRANTIES 

A. Provide notarized copies. 

B. Execute and assemble documents for subcontractors, suppliers, and 
manufacturers. 

C. Submit prior to final Application for Payment. 

D. For items of Work delayed beyond date of Substantial Completion, provide 
updated submittal within ten days after acceptance, listing date of acceptance as 
start of warranty period. 

1.08 SPARE PARTS AND MAINTENANCE MATER.IAI,S 

A. Provide products, spare parts, maintenance and extra materiaIs in quantities 
specified in individual specification Sections. 

B. Deliver to and place in location as directed. Obtain receipt prior to final payment. 

PART 2- PRODUCTS - NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 01 740 
WARRANTlES AND BONDS 

PART 1 - GEMRAL 

1 .Ol SECTZON INCLUDES 

A. Preparation and submittal. 

B. Time and schedule of submittals. 

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS 

A. Document - Invitation to Bid - Bid Bonds 

B. Document - General Conditions: Performance Bond and Labor and 
Material Payment Bonds, Warranty, and Correction of Work. 

C. Section 01 700 - Contract Closeout: Contract Closeout procedures. 

D. Section 01 730 - Operation and Maintenance Data. 

E. Individual Specifications Sections: Warranties required for specific 
products or Work. 

1.03 FORM OF SUBMITTALS 

A. Bind in commercial quality 8 - 1  /2 x 1 1 inch, 21 6 x 279 mm three-ring side 
binders with hardback, cleanable, plastic covers. 

B. Label cover af each binder with typed or printed title WARRANTIES 
AND BONDS, with title of Project, name, address and telephone number 
of Contractor and equipment of supplier and name of responsible 
principal. 

C. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in the sequence of the Table of Contents 
of the Project Manual, with each item identified with the number and title 
of the specification Section in which specified and the name of the product 
or work item. 

D. Separate each warranty or bond with index tab sheets keyed to the Table 
of Contents listing. Provide full information using separate typed sheets as 
necessary. List Subcontractor, supplier, and manufacturer, with name, 
address, and telephone number of responsible principal. 
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1.04 PREPARATION OF SUBMITTALS 

A. Obtain warranties and bonds, executed in duplicate by responsible 
Subcontractors, suppliers, and manufacturers, within ten days after 
completion of the applicable item or work. Except for items put into use 
with Owner's permission, leave date of beginning of time of warranty 
until the Date of Substantial Completion is determined. 

B. Verify that documents are in proper form, contab full infomation, and are 
notarized. 

C. Co-execute SUBMITTALS when required. 

D. Retain warranties and bonds until time specified for submittal. 

1.05 TIME OF SUBMITTALS 

A. For equipment or component parts of equipment put into service during 
constmction with Owner's permission, submit documents within ten days 
after acceptance. 

B. Make other submittals within ten days after Date of Substantial 
Completion, prior to final Application for Payment. 

C. For items of Work when acceptance is delayed beyond Date of Substantial 
Completion, submit within ten days after acceptance, listing the date of 
acceptance as the beginning of the warranty period. 

1.06 SCHEDULE OF SUBMITTALS NOT USED 

PART 2 - PROIIUCTS NOT USED 

PART 3 - EXECUTION NOT USED 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 02225 
TRENCHING 

PART 1 G E N E W  

1.0 1 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Excavate trenches for utilities from outside building to municipal utilities. 

B. Compacted bedding under fill over utilities to subgrade elevations 

C. Backfilling and compaction. 

1.02 RELATED SECTIONS 

A, Section 0 1400 - Quality Control. 

B. Section 01 500 - Construction Facilities and Temporary Controls: 
Water contra1 in excavations. 

A. ANSYASTM C1136 - Method far Sieve Analysis of fine and Coarse 
Aggregates. 

B. ANSIIASTM D698 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of 
Soils and Soil-Aggregate mixtures, Using 5.5 lb. (2.49 kg) Ramrner and 
12 inch (304.8 mm) Drop. 

C. ANSVASTM Dl556 - Test Method for Density of Soil in Place by the 
Sand-Cone Method. 

D. ANSYASTM Dl557 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of 
Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures Using 10 Ib. (4.54 kg) Fhmmer and 18 
inch (457 rnm) Drop. 

1-04 SUBMITTALS 

A. Submit under provisions of Section 01 300. 
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1.05 FIELD MEASUREMENTS 

A. Verify that survey benchmark and intended elevations for the Work are as 
shown on Drawings. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

A. Kentucky Department of Transportation - No. 9 Stone. 

B. ANSI/ASTM D698 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of 
Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures, Using 5.5 lb. (2.49 kg) Rammer and 
12 inch (304.8 mm) Drop. 

C. ANSVASTM Dl556 - Test Method and Density of Soil in Place by the 
Sand-Cone Method. 

D. ANSVASTM Dl557 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of 
Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures Using 10 Ib. (4.54 kg) Rammer and 18 
inch (457 mm) Drop. 

A. Submit under provisions of Section 01 300. 

1.05 FIELD MEASUREMENTS 

A. Verify that survey benchmark and intended elevations for the Work are as 
shown an Drawings. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 

A. As specified in Section 02667. 

2.02 BED MATERIALS 

A. As specified in Section 02667. 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

A. Verify fill materials to be reused, is acceptable. 
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3.02 PREPARATION 

A. Identify required lines, levels, contours, and datum. 

B. Maintain and protect existing utilities remaining which pass through Work 
area. 

C .  Protect plant life, lawns, and other features remaining as a portion of final 
landscaping. 

D. Protect bench marks, existing structures, fences, sidewalks, paving, and 
curbs fivm excavation equipment and vehicular .traffic. 

E. Protect above and below grade utilities that are to remain. 

F. Cut out soft areas of subgrade not capable of insitu compaction. Backfill 
with Type R fill and compact to density equal to or greater than 
requirements for subsequent backfill material. 

3 -03 EXCAVATION 

A. Excavate subsoil required for storm sewer, sanitary sewer, water, gas, 
electric piping to municipal utilities. 

B. Cut trenches sufficiently wide to enable installation of utilities and allow 
inspection. 

C. Excavation shall not interfere with normal degree bearing splay of 
foundations. 

D. Hand trim excavation. Remove loose matter. 

E. Remove lumped subsoil, boulders, and rock up to 113 cu. Yd. (0.25 cu. 
M.), measured by column. Larger material will be removed under Section 
02202. 

F. Correct unauthorized excavation at no cost to Owner. 

G. Correct areas over-excavated by error in accordance with Section 02300. 

13. Stockpile excavated material in area designated on site. 
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3.04 BEDDING 

A. Support pipe and conduit during placement and compaction of bedding 
fill. 

A. Backfill trenches to contours and elevations with unfrozen materials. 

B. Systematically backfill to allow maximum time for natural settlement. Do 
not backfill over porous, wet, fiozen or spongy subgrade surfaces. 

C. Granular Fill: Place and compact materials in continuous layers not 
exceeding 8 inches, 200 mrn compacted depth. 

D. Soil Fill: Place and compact material in continuous layers not exceeding 8 
inches, 200 mm compacted depth. 

E. Employ a placement method that does not disturb or damage foundation 
perimeter drainage, conduit, and duct in trench. 

F. Maintain optimum moisture content of backfill materials to attain required 
compaction density. 

G. Store surplus material at designated location on site. 

H. Leave fill material stockpile areas completely free of excess fill materials. 

3.06 TOLERANCES 

A. Top Surface of Backfilling: Under paved areas, plus or minus one inch, 
25 mm fiom required elevations. 

B. Top Surface of General Backfilling: Plus or minus one inch, 25 mm, fmm 
required elevations. 

3.07 FELD QUALITY CONTROL 

A. Field inspection and testing will be performed under provisions of Section 
01400. 

B. Tests and analysis of fill material will be performed in accordance with 
ANSVASTM D698 under provisions of Section 01400. 
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C. Compaction testing will be performed in accordance with ANSUASTM 
D698 and with Section 01400. 

D. If tests indicate Work does not meet specified requirements, remove 
Work, replace and retest at no cast to Owner. 

E. Frequency of Tests: At each stage of material. 

3.08 PROTECTION OF FINISHED WORK 

A. Protect finished work under provisions of Section 01 500. 

B. Recompact fills subjected to vehicular traffic. 

END OF SECTION 
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SECTION 02667 
DOMlESTIC WATER MAINS 

PART 1 GEmRAL 

1.01 SECTION INCLUDES 

A. Pipe and fittings for water line including domestic water mains. 

B. Valves and domestic water. 

C. Pipe sleeves. 

1.02 WLATED SECTIONS 

A. Section 02225 - Trenching. 

1.03 REFERENCES 

A. AASHTO T 180 - Moisture-Density Relations of Sails Using a 10-lb (4.54 
kg) Rammer and an 1 8-in. (457 mm) Drop. 

B. ANSVASME B16.18 - Cast Copper Alloy Solder Joint Pressure Fittings. 

C .  ANSVASME: B16.22 - Wrought Copper and Copper Alloy Solder Joint 
Pressure Fittings. 

D. ANSUASTM D698 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of 
Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures, Using 5.5 lb (2.49 kg) Rammer and 12 
inch (304.8 mm) Drop. 

E. ANSUASTM D 1557 - Test Methods for Moisture-Density Relations of 
Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures Using 10 lb (4.54 kg) Rammer and 18 
inch (457 mm) Drop. 

F. ANSVASTM D2466 - Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, 
Schedule 40. 

G. ANSVAWS A5.8 - Brazing Filler Metal. 

H. ANSI/AWWA C104 - Cement - Mortar Lining for Ductile-Iron Pipe and 
Fittings for Water. 
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I. ANSVAWWA C 105 - Polyethylene Encasement for Ductile Iron Piping 
for Water and Other Liquids. 

J. ANSVAWWA C 1 1 1 - Rubber-Gasket Joints for Ductile Iron and Grey- 
Iron Pressure Pipe and Fittings. 

K. ANSVAWWA C 15 1 - Ductile-Iron Pipe, Centrifugally Cast in Metal 
Molds or Sand-Lined Molds, for Water or Ofher Liquids. 

L. ANSVAWWA C50O - Gate Valves, 3 through 48 in NPS, far Water and 
Sewage Systems. 

M, ANSVAWWA C502 - Dry Barrel Fire Hydrants. 

N. ANSVAWWA C504 - Rubber Seated Butterfly Valves. 

0. ANSYAWWA C508 - Swing-Check Valves for Waterworks Service, 2 in 
through 24 in NPS. 

P. ANSVAWWA C509 - Resilient Seated Gate Valves 3 in through 12 in 
NPS, for Water and Sewage Systems. 

Q. ANSIIAWWA C600 - Installation of Ductile-Iron Water Mains and 
Appurtenances. 

R.. ANSYAWWA C606 - Grooved and Shouldered Type Joints. 

S. ANSYAWWA C900 - Standard for Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pressure 
Pipe, 4 inch through 12 inch, for Water. 

T. ASTM B88 - Seamless Copper Water Tube. 

U. ASTM Dl785 - Paly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe, Schedules 40, 
80, and 120. 

V. ASTM D224 1 - Poly (Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe (SDR-PR). 

W. ASTM D2855 - Making Solvent-Cemented Joints with Poly (Vinyl 
Chloride) (PVC) Pipe and Fittings. 

X ASTM D2922 - Test Methods for Density of Soil and Soil Aggregate in 
Place by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth). 

Y. ASTM D3017 - Test Methods for Moisture Content of Soil and Soil- 
Aggregate Mixtures. 
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2. ASTM D3 139 - Joints for Plastic Pressure Pipes using Flexible 
Elastomeric Seals. 

AA. ASTM D3035 - Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (SDR-PR) Based on 
Controlled Outside Diameter. 

BB. AWWA C901 - Polyethylene (PE) Pressure Pipe, Tubing, and Fittings, 112 
inch through 3 inch, for Water. 

CC. UL 246 - Hydrants for Fire - Protection Service. 

A. Submit under provisions of Section 0 1300. 

B. Product Data: Provide data on pipe materials, pipe fittings, valves and 
accessories. 

C. Manufacturer's Certificate: Certify that products meet or exceed specified 
requirements. 

1.05 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS 

A. Submit under provisions of Section 01 700. 

B. Accurately record actual locations of piping mains, valves, connections, 
and invert elevations. 

C .  Identify and describe unexpected variations to subsoil conditions or 
discovery of uncharted utilities. 

1 .08 QUALITY ASSURANCE 

A. Perfbrm Work in accordance with utility company. 

B. Valves: Manufacturer's name and pressure rating marked on valve body. 

1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING 

A. Deliver, store, protect and handle products to site under provisions of 
Section 0 1 600. 

B. Deliver and store valves in shipping containers with labeling in place. 

PART 2 PRODUCTS 
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2.01 PIPE 

A. PVC Pipe: ASTM D3035, SDR 21 for 200 psig rating: 
1. Fittings: Ductile Iron 
2. Trace Wire: Magnetic detectable conductor, brightly colored 

plastic covering, imprinted with "Water Service" in large letters. 

2.02 GATE VALVES - Up to 3 Inches (75 mm): 

A. Brass or Bronze body, non-rising stem, inside screw, single wedge or disc, 
IPS ends, with control rod, extension box and valve key. 

2.03 GATE VALVES - 3 Inches (75 mm) and Over 

A. ANSVAWWA C500, Iron body, bronze trim, non-rising stem with square 
nut, single wedge, flanged ends, control rod, extension box and valve key. 

2.04 BALL VALVES - Up to 2 Inches (50 mm) 

A. Brass body, Teflon coated brass ball, rubber seats and stem seals, Tee 
stem pre-drilled for control rod, inlet end, IPS outlet with control rod, 
extension box and valve key. 

2.05 SWING CHECK VALVES - From 2 inches to 12 inches (50 mm to 300 mm) 

A. ANSVAWWA C508, iron body, bronze trim 15 degree swing disc, 
renewable disc and seat, flanged ends. 

2.06 HYDRANT 

A. Hydrant: 3" flushing type. 
B. Finish: Primer and two coats of enamel to color required by utility 

company. 

2.08 BEDDING MATERIALS 

A. Bedding: Fill Type Pea Gravel. 

2.09 ACCESSORIES 

A. Concrete for Thrust Blocks: Concrete type 3,000 psi. 

2.10 AIR RELEASE VALVES 

A. AWWA C5 12, hydromechanical device to automatically release 
accumulated air. 



Coles Campground Road Water Main Project 
Dexter-Almo Heights Water District 
SAI#KY20050822093 1 

Section 02667 

Page 5 of 7 

2.1 1 KUSHING HYDRANTS 

A. Flushing hydrants shall be manufactured by M&H. Other manufacturers 
will be considered if those manufactured by M&H are not readily 
available. 

PART 3 EXECUTION 

A. Verify existing conditions under provisions of Section 0 1039. 

B. Verify that building service connection and municipal utility water main 
size, location and invert are as indicated. 

3 -02 PREPARATION 

A. R.eam pipe and tube ends and remove burrs. 

B. Remove scale and dirt, on inside and outside, before assembly. 

C .  Prepare pipe connections to equipment with flanges or unions. 

3.03 BEDDING 

A. Excavate pipe trench in accordance with Section 02225 for work of this 
Section. Hand trim excavation for accurate placement of pipe to 
elevations indicated. 

B. Place bedding material at trench bottom, level fill materials in one 
continuous layer not exceeding 6 inches (1 50 mm) compacted depth, 
compact to 95 percent. 

C. BacE1l around sides and to top of pipe with fill, tamped in place and 
compacted to 95 percent. 

D. Maintain optimum moisture content of bedding material to attain required 
compaction density. 

3.04 INSTALLATION - PIPE 

A. Maintain separation of water main h m  sewer piping in accordance with 
state requirements (10 feet horizontally and 1 .5 feet vertically). 
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B. Install grooved and shouldered pipe joints to ANSYAWWA C606. 

C. Route pipe in straight line. 

D. Install pipe to allow for expansion and contraction without stressing pipe 
or joints. 

E. Install access fittings to permit disinfection of water system performed 
under Section 02675. 

F. Slope water pipe and position drain at low points. 

G. Form and place concrete for thrust blocks at each elbow or change of 
direction of pipe main. 

H. Establish elevations of buried piping to ensure not less than 2 A (0.6 rn) of 
cover. 

I. Install trace wire continuous over top of pipe buried 6 inches (1 50 mm) 
below finish grade, above pipe line; coordinate with Section 02225. 

J. Backfill trench in accordance with Section 02225. 

3.05 INSTALLATION - VALVES AND EIYDRANTS 

A. Set valves on solid bearing. 

B. Center and plumb valve box over valve. Set box cover flush with finished 
grade. 

C. Set hydrants plumb and locate pumper nozzle perpendicular to roadway. 

D. Set hydrants to grade, with nozzles at least 20 inches (500 mm) above 
ground. 

E. Locate contra1 valve 4 inches (100 mm) away from hydrant. 

F. Provide a drainage pit 36 inches (900 m) square by 24 inches (600 mm) 
deep filled with 2 inches (50 mm) washed gravel. Encase elbow of 
hydrant in gravel to 150 mm above drain opening. 
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3.06 DISINFECTION OF DOMESTIC WATER PIPING SYSTEM 

A. Flush and disinfect system in accordance with state and local standards. 
DisinGect all water piping before placing in service with the use of chlorine 
or chlorine compounds in such amounts as to produce a concentration of at 
least 50 ppm and a residual of at least 25 ppm at the end of 24 hours and 
followed by thorough flushing. 

3.07 SERVICE CONNECTIONS 

A. Provide water service to utility company requirements with reduced 
pressure backflow preventer and water meter with by-pass valves and sand 
strainer. 

3.08 FIELD QTJALITY CONTROL 

A. Hydrostatic tests: Test at not less than 1-112 times the working pressure for 
2 hours in accordance with the latest edition of AWWA Standard C600. 

1. Increase pressure in 50-psig increments. Hold test for one hour, 
decrease to 0 psig. Slowly increase again to test pressure and hold 
for one more hour. Maximum allowable leakage is 2 quarts 
(1.89 L) per hour per joint. Re-make leaking joints with new 
materials and repeat test until leakage is w i t .  above limits. 

B. If tests indicate Work does not meet specified requirements, remove work, 
replace and retest at no cost to Owner. 

C .  All construction shall be thoroughly inspected by the local utility prior to 
placing any backfill. The contractor shall notify the local utility office 24 
hours in advance of backfiling. Any defects, broken or cracked pipe, 
etc.. .shall be replaced and repaired at the Contractor's expense. 

D. The Water District will pay for the initial filling and incidental flushing of 
the line for testing purposes. The Contractor shall be responsible for 
adding all disinfecting materials. If the test fails after the initial testing 
and flushing, the Contractor shall be required to pay for all additional 
water that is required to be used for filling until the tests meet the specified 
requirements. 

END OF SECTION 





Coles Campground Road 
Water Main. Project 

Dexter - Alrno Heights Water District 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 

Please make the following revisions to the contract documents as listed in this 
Addendum. Said revisions shall become a pai-t of the contract documents and Bidder 
shall acknowledge receipt of them in the Form of Proposal. 

1. The work shown on plan sheet 2 of 6 from Station 18+70 to Station 19+90 has 
previously been constructed by the Dexter Alma Water District. This work is not 
a part of the contract. Please eliminate 120 If of 8-inch Water Main from the 
Forrn of Proposal. 

2. The existing 6-inch water main on Seth Lane shown on Sheet 2 of 6 is 011 the east 
side of Seth. Please revise tlie plans to show the corinection of this 6-inch main 
on tlie east side of Seth. 

3.  Add the following paragraph to specification section 02667-3.08: 

E. The Contractor is responsible for obtaining all samples and submitting them to 
the Testing Lab. The cost of such sampling and testing is tlie respoilsibility of 
the Contractor. 

4. Add the following paragraph to specification section 02667-2.06 

C. Hydrants shall be M&H or Mueller (painted red). 

5. The contractor is hereby made aware that there is a telephone line on the north 
side of Coles Campground Road and at other locations tlx-oughorat tlie project, arid 
that tliere is a natural gas line on the south side of Coles Campground and at other 
locations throughout the project. There may be other utilities located tluoughout 
this project that are not shown on the plans or defined herein. It shall be tlie sole 
responsibility of the Contractor to have all utilities located prior to digging. 

6. All questions shall be submitted to the Owner or Engineer no later than Monday 
August 2 1 at 4:00pm. 

7. If additional funding is available, the Water District may choose to issue a change 
order for additional 8-inch water main down 1 6th Street. Should this happen, tlie 
Bidder's Unit Price for 8-inch water main will be multiplied by the additional 
water main to determine the change order amount (this will iiiclude all valves, 
hydrants and all other necessary appurtenances to). 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 1 



Coles Campgn*oumd Road 
Water Maim Project 

Dexter - Almo Heights Water District 

ADDENDUM NO. 2 
August 18,2006 

Please make the following revisions to the contract documents as listed in this 
Addendum. Said revisions shall become a part of the contract documents and Bidder 
shall aclmowledge receipt of them in the Form of Proposal. 

1. On plan sheet 2 of 6, Station 0+30 (16'~ St.) delete 90 degsee &inch bend and add 
a 8" DI Tee and 8-inch x 10-inch DI increaser. 

2. On plan sheet 2 of 6 revise note on 16" Street water main to read- 10" PVC 
(AWWA C900). 

3. On plan sheet 5 of 6 revise note on 161h street water main to read- 10" PVC 
(AWWA C900). 

4. On plan sheet 5 of 6 revise note at end to read - Station 19+25 End Constsuction 
(Rase Rid), 10-inch DI MJ Gate Valve (k. Box, 10-inch x 10-inch x &-inch DI Tee 
and 10-inch Plug and Fire Hydrant. 

5. Fire Hydrant symbols on sheet 1,2 and 5 of 6 shall depict Fire Hydrants as shown 
on the detail in this Addendum No. 2 labeled Typical Fire EIydrant Setting. 

END OF ADDENDUM NO. 'I 





















KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORIN 
Pro' ct Budget WX21035012 DEXTER-ALMO WATER DISTRICT 

Estimated d" D A s  Bid URevised 

Funding Funding Funding Funding Local Unfunded 
Cost Classification IEDF Grant KIA Grant Source 1 Source 2 Source 3 Source 4 Funds Costs Total 

1 Administrative Expenses (1) 4 h .  
2 Legal Expenses 

. - 

5 Plann~ng (2) i 25~3 I 2 s ~  
6 Engineenng Fees - Deslgn I f jdSC 1 q7S5 
7 Engtneenng Fees - Construct~on / 250 I 2- 
8 Engtneenng Fees - lnspectlon 650 i b!% I 
9 Construction 7 ( r  357.7SlW- 
10 Equipment 1 
1' Conbngency i0Gl,-3 lF5C3 1 
12 lother I I I 

I 
'j20rn- 846-75- l~otal I I I I 1 

(1) Include Interim Financing 

(2) Include in this category, all negotiated fees not 
included in the RD fee scale calculation 

Total Funding 

9; .- d- Title 7- '&-0&, 

Date 

Date 
Committed Local Funding Sources 

1 I 
2 
3 

Total I I 

Amount 



KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

INFRASTRUCTURE FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND FOR 
TOBACCOICOAL PRODUCING COUNTIES 

GRANT ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

GRANT AMOUNT: 

GRANTEE: 

DATE OF AGREEMENT: 

Dexter-Almo Water District 

J ~ C  a7 ~ W G  



GRANT ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT 

This Grant Assistance Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into this 
date, )u h - ~  ,37 , 2006 by and between the KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE 
AUTHORITY ("Authority"), a body corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation 
and governmental agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky; and 
the Dexter-Almo Water District ("Grantee"). 

W I T N E S S  

WHEREAS, the General Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, at its 
1988 Regular Session, amended Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (the 
"Act"), creating the "Kentucky Infrastructure Authority" to serve the public purposes 
identified in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority, an agency of the Commonwealth attached to the 
Governor's Office, is charged pursuant to KRS 224A.300 with coordinating the 
implementation of infrastructure projects and to this end maintains within the Water 
Resource Information System, a comprehensive database of profiles of each 
community's water and wastewater projects; and 

WHEREAS, the 2005 General Assembly included in the Commonwealth's 2004- 
2006 biennial Budget funding for the Grantee's infrastructure project, the subject of this 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee now seeks to implement the Project as identified in the 
2004-2006 Budget of the Commonwealth and the Authority has determined that the 
Project is a Project within the meaning of the Act, and has been shown to be consistent 
with the Area Water Management Plan where applicable; and 

WHEREAS, the Grantee and the Authority desire to enter into this Agreement 
which sets forth their respective duties, rights, covenants, and obligations with respect 
to the acquisition, construction and financing of the Project described in the Grantee's 
Project Profile. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions contained 
herein and for the other good and valuable consideration, the receipt, mutuality and 
sufficiency of all of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, the Authority 
and the Grantee each agree as follows: 



SECTION I - DEFINITIONS 

All terms utilized herein shall have the same definitions and meaning as ascribed 
to them in the Act, which are hereby incorporated in this Agreement by reference, the 
same as if set forth hereby verbatim; provided, however, that those definitions utilized in 
the Act having general application are hereby modified in certain instances to apply 
specifically to the Grantee and its Project. 

Act shall mean Chapter 224A of the Kentucky Revised Statutes, as amended. 

Agreement shall mean this Agreement made and entered into by and between 
the Grantee and the Authority, as authorized by the Act, providing for a Grant to the 
governmental agency, unit of government, or private, investor-owned water system by 
the Authority. .. 

Area Water Management Council shall mean the council designated as the 
planning body for the area, which shall prepare the Area Water Management Plan and 
approve all Project Profiles for water and wastewater projects. 

Area Water Management Plan shall mean the plan that identifies current and 
future water supply, drinking water, and wastewater service needs of the area. 

Authority shall mean the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority created by the Act as 
amended, a body corporate and politic, constituting a public corporation and a 
governmental agency and instrumentality of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, or such 
other designation as may be effected by future amendments to the Act. 

Engineer@) shall mean the professional engineer or firm of professional 
engineers properly procured by the Grantee in connection with the Project identified in the 
Project Profile Database. 

Grantee shall mean any governmental agency or unit of government or any 
private, investor owned utility within the Commonwealth eligible for funding under the 
Program in accordance with the Act, now having been or hereafter being granted the 
authority and power to finance, acquire, construct, and operate a Project, and for the 
purposes of this Agreement shall mean that entity identified in the Project Profile. 

Grant shall mean the funds effected under this Agreement from the Authority to 
the Grantee in the principal amount set forth in the 2004-2006 Budget of the 
Commonwealth, for the purpose of defraying the costs incidental to the Project. 

Kentucky Water Management Plan shall mean the guide and strategy that 
incorporates and analyzes each Area Water Management Plan and provides an 
assessment of future needs and allocation of funding for water and wastewater services 
throughout the Commonwealth. 



Program shall mean the program authorized by KRS 224A.035 for the Authority to 
engage in a program of assistance to designated entities with respect to the construction 
and acquisition of water and wastewater infrastructure projects. 

Project shall mean, when used generally, water, wastewater or other 
infrastructure project authorized pursuant to the Act, and when used in specific reference 
to the Grantee, the Project described in the Project Profile. 

Project Administrator shall mean that individual designated in writing to the 
Authority by the Grantee, who has the responsibility of supervising the Project and 
coordinating the preparation of all documentation with respect to the Project. 

Project Budget shall mean a list of Project expenses and funding sources, in the 
form set forth in Exhibit 1. 

Project Profile shall mean those specific details of the Project, approved by the 
Area Water Management Council as being consistent with the Area Water Management 
Plan. 

Rates and Charges shall mean an approved schedule of charges, based on 
actual cost of service, to adequately provide for retirement of any related debt obligation 
and to provide for proper operation of the Project. 

System shall mean the utility system owned and operated by the Grantee of 
which the Project shall become a part and from the earnings of which System shall be 
operated, maintained and insured. 

SECTION 2 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority covenants and agrees, conditioned upon the timely performance by the 
other party of its respective obligations, to undertake the following obligations: , 

A. The Authority shall pay to the Grantee the grant sum in an amount not to exceed 
$92,000. 

B. The Authority may make periodic reviews of the Project progress and may make 
inspections of the Project and send inspection reports to the Grantee. 
Deficiencies identified in the inspection report shall be corrected by the Grantee 
and the correction reported in writing to the Authority within two weeks of receipt 
of the Authority's inspection report. 

C. The Authority shall cooperate with the Grantee in order to facilitate the 
obligations set out in this Agreement. 



SECTION 3 - OBLIGATIONS OF THE GRANTEE 

The Grantee covenants and agrees to undertake the following obligations: 

A. The Grantee shall, before any funds are released, sign and submit the 
Agreement, and complete and include the following Exhibits which are 
incorporated herein and made a part hereof: 

1. Before the Project is bid, the Grantee shall complete and submit to the 
Authority the following: 

a) A Project description in the form of a Project Profile together with the 
estimated Project Budget, as Exhibit I. 

b) A copy 'of the Grantee's resolution, as Exhibit 2, accepting the grant 
award, amending its budget to allow for receipt and expenditures of ttiese 
funds, and authorizing a designated individual to execute the Agreement 
and all other documentation related to the Project. 

c) The opinion of legal counsel substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit 3 
hereto. 

d) A Statement of Agreement to adopt and use the Kentucky Uniform System 
of Accounting (KUSoA) and assure that rates and charges for water 
service are based upon the cost or providing such service as Exhibit 4, if 
applicable. 

e) A schedule of current rates and charges. If there will be a change in the 
current rate structure as a result of this project, provide the proposed 
schedule of rates and charges. 

9 Documentation of Clearinghouse Endorsement and Clearinghouse 
Comments. 

g) An Application for Electronic Transfer of Funds, as Exhibit 6. 

h) A Certification of Funding as Exhibit I I. 

i) Any additional covenants or agreements that may be required included in 
Exhibit 7. 

2. After Project is bid, the Grantee shall complete and submit to the Authority 
the following: 

a) A revised Project Budget based on Project bids, as Exhibit 1. 

b) The opinion of legal counsel substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit 5 
hereto. 

5 



Deleted: 1 
The Grantee may request receipt of Grant funds after completion of items in n 

n 
Sections 3. A. I. and 2. above and full execution of the Agreement. The 
Authority, upon receipt of Request for Payment and Project Status Report 
Exhibit 8, will release funds. The Request for Payment and Project Status 
Report must include copies of invoices for costs incurred. The Authority may 
withhold release of funds until receipt of Administrative Fee pursuant to 
Section 7. 

The Grantee shall perform andlor cause to be performed all necessary acts 
(consistent with KRS 45A and in accordance with applicable laws) to plan, design 
and construct the Project including: the procurement of land, easements and 
rights of way; professional services, including but not limited to architectural and 
engineering services; construction contractor(s); and equipment andlor materials. 

The Grantee shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses and approvals from the 
appropriate federal, state, andlor local governmental entities prior to construction 
of the Project. Further, the Grantee shall require all construction contractors to 
pay wages pursuant to applicable prevailing wage rates (federal or state) for all 
work relating to the subject Project. 

The Grantee shall include Exhibit 10 in the engineer's contract for this project 
and remuneration of engineering services will be based on the fee schedule 
included in the exhibit. 

The Grantee shall comply with all applicable federal and state statutes, executive 
orders, regulatory requirements, and policies relating to the planning and 
construction of the Project. 

The Grantee shall provide to the Authority access to ail records related to the 
Project for review in determining compliance with the Grant Agreement and all 
applicable laws and regulations. The Grantee shall retain all records, including 
all invoices, relating to the Project for three years after full execution of Exhibit 9 
- Certificate of Completion. 

The Grantee shall cooperate fully with the Authority and provide any 
documentation requested by the Authority in order to facilitate the obligations set 
out in this Agreement. 

Any unauthorized or improper expenditure of funds, or expenditure of funds other 
than in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, shall be deemed a default 
of this Agreement by the Grantee. 

The Grantee will proceed expeditiously with and complete the Project in 
accordance with the approved final design, plans and specifications or 
amendments thereto, prepared by the Project Engineer for the Grantee and as 
approved by the appropriate state and federal agencies. 



K. The Grantee agrees that throughout the reasonable life of the infrastructure 
facilities developed under this Project it will retain ownership of, operate, and 
maintain these facilities, and all appurtenances thereto, keeping them in good 
and sound repair and good operating condition at its own expense so that the 
completed Project will continue to provide the services for which it was designed. 
Change of ownership or disposal of the Project facilities may occur only with 
written approval of the Authority. 

I_. The Grantee agrees that it will at all times impose, charge and collect sufficient 
customer Rates and Charges. 

M. The Grantee,shall, within 3 months of initiation of construction of the Project, 
submit to the Authority, Final Design Plans in an AutoCAD Drawing File Format 
(DWG), referenced to the appropriate (North or South) Kentucky State Plane 
Coordinate System (NAD83-Survey Feet) on a Compact Disc (CD). If there is a 
significant deviation from the Final Design Plan during construction, As-built 
plans shall also be provided to the Authority, within three months of construction 
completion, in the same format. 

N. The Grantee shall submit the fully executed Certificate of Completion once all 
Project construction related activities are complete. Exhibit 9. 

SECTION 4 - MUTUALITY OF OBLIGATIONS 

A. The parties agree that the funds granted by the Commonwealth to the Grantee 
are to be used solely for the purposes of implementing the Project. Further the 
parties agree that the obligations imposed upon them are for their respective 
benefit and the timely fulfillment of each and every obligation in accordance with 
this Agreement is necessary. The failure of either party to fulfill its obligations 
under this Agreement shall constitute a breach of same. 

B. In the event of default by the Grantee, including the failure to take actions 
directed herein andlor to comply with time deadlines set out in this Agreement, 
the Authority may declare this Agreement void from the beginning without further 
obligation to the Grantee and may commence appropriate legal action to enforce 
its rights under this Agreement including action for recovery of funds expended 
hereunder. 

C. Except as may otherwise be provided herein, the parties to this Agreement shall 
be solely responsible for any costs incurred in fulfilling their respective obligations 
under this Agreement and neither party shall have any claim against the other 
party for reimbursement of costs whether or not a party is in default. 



SECTION 5 - TERMS OF AGREEMENT 

A. All funds made available under this Agreement are subject to reauthorization by 
subsequent General Assemblies of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Should 
funding for the Project not be reauthorized this agreement shall terminate. 

B. This Agreement shall be valid only after all signatories have signed. 

C. This Agreement may be terminated by either party at any time for cause and may 
be terminated by either party without cause upon 30 days written notice to the 
other party. Termination of this Agreement shall not diminish or in any Other 
manner affect any other remedy that may be available to the parties for any 
breach of the,Agreement that occurs prior to the termination. 

D. If additional financial assistance for this project becomes available to the Grantee 
after execution of this agreement, the amount of the assistance from the 
Authority shall be recalculated with the inclusion of the additional assistance, and 
the Grantee shall pay to the Authority the amount, if any, by which the grant 
actually made, exceeds the grant as determined by the recalculation. 

SECTION 6 -ADVANCE FUNDING FOR PROJECT PLANNING AND DESIGN 

A. The Grantee may request, in writing, that a portion of the grant funds be 
disbursed prior to Project bidding to pay a portion of the cost of Project planning 
and design directly related to submission of the Project plans and specifications 
for review by the Division of Water and the Public Service Commission, as may 
be required. 

B. It is specifically understood and agreed by the Grantee, in the event that the 
Project has not commenced construction by June 30, 2009, for whatever reason, 
all grant funds disbursed for Project planning and design are subject to full and 
immediate repayment to the Authority. 

C. Funds disbursed under this Section of the Agreement shall not exceed 50% of 
the Project planning and design amount as established in the guidelines as set 
forth in Exhibit 10. 

D. Funds received under provisions of this Section shall be used solely for planning 
and design costs of the Project. 

E. No funds shall be released under this Section until the requirements of Section 3. 
A. 1. of this Agreement have been met. 



SECTION 7 - ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 

The Grantee agrees to pay to the Authority an administrative fee (the 
"Administrative FeeJJ) equal to % of 1% of the principal amount of the Grant. The 
Administrative Fee shall be due and payable on the date the Grantee's initial 
Request for Payment and Project Status Report is submitted to the Authority. 

SECTION 8 - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. This Agreement may be signed by each party on a separate copy, and in such 
case one counterpart of this Agreement shall consist of a sufficient number of 
such copies to reflect the signature of each party hereto. This Agreement may 
be executed in two or more counterparts each of that shall be deemed an 
original, and it shall not be necessary in making proof of this Agreement or the 
terms and conditions hereof to produce or account for more than one of such 
counterparts. 

B. The headings set forth in this Agreement are only for convenience or reference 
and the words contained therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, 
amplify or aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

C. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure 
to the benefit of the successor and assigns, respectively, of the parties. This 
provision shall not be construed to permit an assignment by any patty of any of 
its rights and duties under this Agreement which assignment shall be prohibited 
except with the prior written consent of the parties hereto. 

D. This Agreement sets forth the entire understanding of the parties with respect to 
the subject matter hereof, and may be modified only by a written instrument duly 
executed by each of the parties hereto. 

E. Timely and accurate performance of all actions by the respective parties are 
mutually recognized by the parties hereto to be of great importance to the 
citizens of the Commonwealth generally, and particularly to those citizens directly 
affected by the Project subject of this Agreement. 

F. The parties agree that any suit, action or proceeding with respect to this 
Agreement may only be brought into or entered by, as the case may be, the 
courts of the Commonwealth of Kentucky situated in Frankfort, Franklin County, 
Kentucky or the United States District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky, 
Frankfort Division. 

G. The Authority may audit or review all documentation and records of the Grantee 
relating to this Project pursuant to the provisions of KRS 45A.150. 



H. The Grantee agrees that the Authority, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, 
the Auditor of Public Accounts, and the Legislative Research Commission, or 
their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, 
documents, papers, records, or other evidence, which are directly pertinent to 
this contract for the purpose of financial audit or program review. Furthermore, 
any books, documents, papers records, or other evidence provided to the 
Commonwealth, the Finance and Administration Cabinet, the Auditor of Public 
Accounts, or the Legislative Research Commission which are directly pertinent to 
the contract shall be subject to public disclosure regardless of the proprietary 
nature of the information, unless specific information is identified and exempted 
and agreed to by the Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet as 
meeting the provisions of KRS 61.878(1)(c) prior to the execution of the contract. 
The Secretary of the Finance and Administration Cabinet shall not restrict the 
public release of any information which would otherwise be subject to. public 
release if a state government agency was providing the services. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed by their respective duly authorized officers as of the day and year above 
written. 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY ATTEST 

Title: Title: - 

ATTEST 

By: 

Title: 

EXAMINED 

LEGAL. COUNSEL TO THE 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORIN 

By: 

Title: -- 



Ernie Fletcher 
Governor 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

(502) 573-0260 
(502) 573-01 57 
http:llkia.ky.gov 

Jody E. Hughes 
Executive Director 

June 19, 2006 

Ms. Kathy wyatt 
PO Box 55 
Almo, KY 42020 

RE: Dexter-Almo tieights Water District - Coles Campground Extension 
Grant Award in the amount of $41,462 

Dear Ms. Wyatt: 

Congratulations on the grant you received from Governor Ernie Fletcher and the General 
Assembly of the Commonwealth of Kentucky awarded during the 2006 Legislative Session of 
the General Assembly. The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) is pleased to have been 
designated as the agency for administration of these infrastructure project grants. 

Bonds to support these grant funds cannot be sold until after January I, 2007. Once 
grant funds are available, no funds can be released until your project meets all grant 
requirements, is reviewed by Capital Projects and Bond Oversight Committee and has a fully 
executed grant assistance agreement. Detailed project requirements are outlined in the grant 
assistance agreement and will be provided to your project administrator. 

Please designate your project administrator on Exhibit I. The project administrator will 
work with KIA and be responsible for completion of all of the grant documentation and 
requirements. Your project administrator will be responsible for coordinating proper procurement 
of all necessary contracts and for completing all reqclirements of the grant. Please be assured 
that you will be copied on all essential correspondence and consulted on all decisions regarding 
your grant. 

Your grant funds must be used for the project as identified in the 2006-2008 Biennial 
Budget of the Commonwealth and as listed above. If your grant award is not linked to a 
project profile with a WX or SX number, it is critical that you work with your Area Water 
Management Council through your Area Development District to get a project number 
designated. Grant assistance agreements will not be forwarded to the project administrator until 
we receive your project's SX or WX number as identified in Exhibit 2. 

An Equal Opportunity Employer MIFID 



Dexter-Almo Water District 

EXHIBIT 2 
Coniplcte and ~llail uc [,IS LO: 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 

Frankfort, I S  40601 
Fax : 502-573-0157 

Phonc: 502-573-0260 
DESIGNATION OF PROJECT NUMBER 

$185,000 - Dexter-Almo Water District - Water Ldne Extension 

(Please plint or type) 
Please check the correct' box and fill in the appropriate information: 

My grant award will be used for one project. The \YrX. or S S  number is listed below. 

0 My grant award will be used for one project. The \VX or SX number has not yet been identified. The project 
administrator will be responsible for submitting this information to ISXA after coordinati~l~ with the Area \;Y1ater 
Management Council. 

d My grant award will be used for more than one project. The \YiX or SX numbers are listed below. 

lyIx/SX NUIvIBER: i>~'$ ,X \'c 2 % C! '8 :I. Grant $ Allocated: $a et:Q --- 
qJ, & a  m / S X  NU&/IBER: w')! ;% l b 3 < ((- Grant $ Allocated: '. PL, c,? 

1 

i W / S S  NIJIVIBER: Grant $ rlllocated: 

K!X/SX NUMBER: Grant $ Allocated: 

My grant award will be used for more than one project. IF any WX or SX number(s) have been identified, they u e  listed 
below. The \W or S S  number(s) that have not yet been identified wiU be provided to I i lA by the project administrator 
alter coordinating with the Area Water hlanagement Council. 

TGX/SX NUIvBER: Grant $ Allocated: -- 

iVX/SX NUhXBER: Grant '$ Allocated: 

Remining Grant Unallocated to Project(s): 

Other: 

IDLED SPIRiT An Equal Opportunity Emplayer bllFID 





DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS VVATHCR DISTRICT 
Calloway County, Kentucky 

FINANCIAL STATEbIEP.;TS 
DECEkIRER 31,2005 
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INTRODUCTION 

TIie Dexter-Xlmo tieights Water District is a de jure Water District, situated  holly in Callo\vay County, 
Kcritltck>. and esists by virtue of  a Judgernent and Order of  the Callo\vay County Fiscal Court. 

0 1 1  April 24, 1964, the Commissioners of Dexter-Alnio Heights Water District adopted a resolution 
pro\ itirng for the construction and installation of a water-works system in and for said District, and 
authorizing the issuance of  Watenvorks Systeni Reveriue Bonds to pro\.ide for the costs thereof. On hlay 
22, 1964, bonds iri  the amount of  S225,000 tvere sold and construction of the system was completed in 
December 1964. During the calendar year 1976, the District receiveti funds from the Kentucky Highnay 
Departnient for relocation of water lines. Existing lines \\ere included in property acquired by the 
Kentucky High\\.ay Department to be useti in constructiolz of a four-lane highttay from blurmy to 
Renton, Kentucky Said funds kvere used to offset the cost of  laying new lines to replace those lost to the 
I II$I\\  n> Dcp;lrtment. Additional funds \vere receii.ed during 1979 from the Kentucky Highway 
l)cl>;~rtriitxi~ Sor relocation of other nater liries due to the relocation rncntiont'ci a b o ~ e .  These additional 
funds \\ere also used to offset tllc cost of laying new lines, and replacing those lost to the tiigh\vay 
Dtpartrnent. 



CER'T1I;IED PUHL,IC ACCOIJ NTANTS 
IiATi ii<YN ('I'd\ 

l G ~ l ~ ~ l f ~ N K 1 l  \!'l:<~.i l i . ! i i  l:i< 1 I , ' ,  
-- -- --*-- 

.3 1 0  h1.1t11 S I I - C C . ~  J'O i30x 527. blurmy. KY 42071 Telephone (270) 753-0274 FAX (270) 753-0275 i11fi)tij pic>~ c t*cp:i I 0 x 1 1  

To thc C'onlnilssioncrs 
L)e\tcr -:\Inlo Hei$lts \Yarer District 
,4lmo. i<eiiti~chj 17020 

\\ ;: ha \  c autlircd 11ie accompanying bala~ice sheet of Dexter-Airno Heights \\later District as of December 
3 1 ,  1005. 2 n d  the relilted statements of income, retained earnings and cash flo\\,s for the year then ended 
Tllcse financial statements are the responsibility of the nlanrigemerit of Dexter-A11110 Heights Water 
D ~ s i r ~ c [  Our responsibility is to espress an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

\\'c contluctcd our audit in accordance \\.it11 United States generally accepted auditing standards, and 
G O I . ( ' I ~ I I I I I L ' I I I ~ I /  ..lilrj~[l~lg Sta~ldnt-ds, issued by tile Comptroller Geneml of the Unitcd States. Those 
s[anti:irtls recluire tllnt \ve plan and perform the audit to obt:~in reasonable assurance about whether the 
fi11;liisial siati:nicnts are free of  n~aterial misstatement. An audit includes esariiining, on a test basis, 
c\ iiicili::: s~ i~~ l>or t i n s  tile ar i io~~nts  and disclosures in the financial statements. An  audit also i~~c ludcs  
assessing the accounting principles l~seti and significant estimates made by management, as ti*ell as 
c.\ aluatirl; 111~' o \  era11 financial Stiltt '11ltllt  pr~'sc~ltation. \Ve bclie\.e that our audit pro\-ides a reasonable 
t~nsis for out opinion. 

In o ~ i r  O I ) I I I I ~ I : ,  tlic fi~ia~lcial statements referred to abo\.e present fairly, in all nlatcrial respects, the 
~irlanclal pos l t~o~i  of Dexter-Almo Heights Water District as of December 3 1, 2005, and the results of its 
opcrntlonz anti changes in retained earnings and its cash flons for the year then ended in conformity \\irh 
accounting pr~nciples generally accepted in [he United States of A~ilerica 

111 nccor~I~ti~cc \\ ill1 C ; O \ - ~ I . I I I I I C I I [  :llldlting S I ( I I I ~ / ~ I I " ~ / . S ,  \\ e I t n~  e also issusc.l otil. re1701.t d;i~cif hIilt~I1 21. 
7006. n11 o ~ ~ r  consititration o f  the Dexter-..limo I-{eights \Vatsr District's internal control o ~ . c r  financial 
reporting and our tests of  its compliance \ ~ i t h  certain pro\~isions of lalvs and regiilations. 

I'ierce L! .I\ssociates, PLLC 
Certified Public Accountants 

March 74, 2006 



DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET 
December 3 1,2005 

Utilitv Pl;ll~t 
1Vateru orks System in Service 
Construction in Progress - Not in Service 
L.css: Accumulated Depreciation 

'r01a1 Utility Plant 

Current Assets 
C3sh 
r?,ccoui~rs Receivable 

Total Current Assets 

Total .Assets 

CAPITAL, A S D  LI.4BILITIES 

('nn!tal -. - 
r ) ~ ~ l ; l t ~ ~ j  ~ap1131 
I<ci;t~llctl Ear-nings 

?-oral Capital 

I . . o I ~ L ~ - ~ ~ c I - I I I  I3cb1 ---- 
Crljxtal lease 

Total Long-teml Debt 

Current l-iabilities 
Accounts Payable 
r\ccrued Taxes 
Custonler Deposits 
Line of Credit for Construction 
Current Poflion of Long-Teml Debt 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Capital and Liabilities 

See Accountants' Audit Report and Notes to the Financial Statements 
-3 - 



DEXTER-AEMO HEIGHTS M'ATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECERIBER 31,2005 

0per:lting Revenue 
LVater Revenues 
Fees 

Total Revenues 

0l)er;lting Espenscs 
\\.'ater Purchases 
Operating Supplies 
\i'ater Testing 
Bad Debt 
Salaries 
Comniissioner Fees 
Conrract Labor 
Truck and blileage Expense 
L.egal and Accounting 
Telephone and Utilities 
P q ~ o l l  Tax Expense 
Office Expense 
I'ostage 
I'rinting and Reproduction 
Insurance 
;\ti\.crtising and Dues 
l)epreciation 
Conference and Training 
Ta\: arid Pernits 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operatine Income 

Otller Income (Espense) 
Interest Income 
Extraordinary Expense 
Interest Espense 

Net Income 

See Accountants' Audit Report and Notes to the Financial Statements 
-4- 



DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS MTAiTER DISTRICT 
STATEItlENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2005 

RETAINED EARNINGS, January 1,2004 

Net Income for the year ended December 3 1,2004 

RETAITU'ED EARNINGS, January 1,2005 

Net Income for the year ended Decen~ber 3 1,2005 

RETAINED EARNINGS, December 3 1,2005 

See Accountants' Audit Report and Notes to the Financial Statements 
- 5 -  



DEXTER-ALMO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2005 

CASII FL.OllrS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Income 
AQust~nents to recollcile net income to net cash provided 

(used) by operating activities: 
D::prccintion 
(I~~crease)  Decrease in Accounts Receivable 
Incrcase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 
Incrcase (Decrease) in Accrued Taxes 
I~lcrease (Decrease) in Customer Deposits 

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities 

C.ASI.1 FLOLVS FROM CAPITAL .4ND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
l'ri~lcipal Paid on Capital Lease (1 6,400) 
Advances on Line of Credit 50,000 
~ldditions to Watenvorks System (66,170) 
lncrcase in Donated Capital 12,600 

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities 

C:\SI 1 1'L.OLi.S FROXl INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
1'1 O C C C ~ S  of Ill\  L'StlllUllf 

Net Cash Pro\-ided By I~i\.es[~ng Actl\.~tles 

XET INCREASE IN CASH 

CASI I - January 1 ,  2005 

CASI-I - Dccember 3 1 ,  2005 

Cash Flo\v Disclosures: 

Interest Paid: 

See Accountants' Audit Report and Notes to the Financial Statements 
- 6 - 



DEXTER-ALblO HEIGHTS WATER DI[STRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATERIEIC'TS 



DEXTER-ALR.10 I-IEIGMTS WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES T O  FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS 

NOTE I - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POL.ICIES 

Tlit finallcia1 statenients of Dexter-Alrno Heights Water District are prepared an the accrual basis of 
accou~iting. Therefore, income is recognized as it  is earned rather than when cash is received, and 
c r l > a ~ l i t ~ ~ ~ . c s  recognizud as incurred ralller than \\fhcn paid in accordance \vith generally ncccpted 
accounting principles. 

For rile pilrl)oses of the statement of cash f l o \~s ,  all cash in)-estments ni th an original maturity of three 
nlon~lis or I C S S  are considered to be cash equi\.alcnts. 

Tllc Dlstr~ct does not ha\.e an al lo\~ance for doubtful accounts. Instead, the direct ~vrite-off method is 
L I S L ' ~  ;inil accounts are i~ritten-off as they become uncollectible. Ttiis method is not expected to differ 
rnntsr~al l  from the allo\itance method. 

..\ssct C';lnit:ili~;ition ant! Depreciation Expense 

Tilt assers purchased by the District arc capitalized at cost. Depreciation for these assets is provided 
using tlic straight-line method over their estiniated useft11 lives. The estin~ated useful lives of  the assets 
arc as folio\\ s 

IVatenrorks System 6: I~iiprove~nents 50 Years 
Building 33 Years 
Equipment 1 0 Years 
Office Furniture 6: Equipment 1 0 Years 
Vehicles I0 Years 

As a special taxing district o f  local government the District is exempt from Federal income tax. 
Therefore, no provision is made for income tax expense. 

Accruals 

The District does not conlpensate for days not worked, therefore no accrual has been nlade far 
conipensated absences. 

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. 



DEXTER-ALhIO HEIGI-ITS WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES T O  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assuniptions that affect certain reported aniounts and 
disclosi~res. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Tilt Dtxter--Airno Heights Water District operates as a proprietary fund, and is considered to be a separate 
rtportillg entit)., and not a component unit subject to inclusion in the financial statements of  any other 
entity Criteria considered in detemiining the reporting entity included; evaluating oversight 
rcsponsibilit) , financial interdependency, selectio~l o f  board members and management personnel, 
influence o\,er operations, and accountability for fiscal matters. 

Fund .-jccounting 

The accounts of the Deyter-Alnlo Heights 1Vater District are organized using governmental fund 
accounting, liich uses the basis of funds or account groups, each of tvhich is considered a separate 
reporting entity. The operations of each fi~rid or account group are summarized by providing a separate 
scl of self-l~ala~icilig accourlts tvllich include its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. 

TIIC District is considered to be a proprietary fund type, or enterprise fund. All enterprise fund is used ro 
account Sbr operations that are financrd ant! opcr;iteti in a manner sin~ilar to private business enterprises 
\\ herc the costs (espenses, including depreciation) of providing \Later sen.ices to the general public on a 
continuing basis are financed through user charges. 

SOTE 2 - I'IIOPERTY, PL,.ANT ASD EQUIPAIEKT 

Fiucd assets at December 3 1 ,  2005, are stated at cost less depreciation as follows: 

Accunlulated 
Cost Depreciation - -- 

\\'ater\\.orks System in Service S560,301 $259,118 
Construction in Progress 50,805 0 
\\'ells (2) 12,424 12,434 
Building and I~nprovements 24,038 6,057 
Equip~~ient and Vehicle 17,474 9,6 10 
Office Furniture & Equipment 4,443 1,413 

Rook 
Value 

TOTALS: 



IIEXTER-ALhIO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAI., STATEMENTS (Continued) 

h'OTE 3 - CASH 

Casli at December 3 1 ,  2005, was fi~lly insured by the FDIC and consisted of the following: 

Cnsli on Hand 
'1-lit X1urr:i)' Bank, Ke~aetiur. Fund - unrestricted 
Tlic i\,lurray Bank, Meter Fund - restricted 

Total. 

NOTE 4 - ACCOIJNTS RECEIVABLE 

Customer accounts receivable at Deceniber 3 1 .  2005, aniounted to S 18,205. This represents the amount 
of cun-rlnl December bills and any arnounl in arrears d t~e  from custoniers. 

Donated Capital (formerly Contributions in Aid of Construction) amounting to S190,625 have been 
receij ctl o\,cr the total period of time that the District has been in optration. These advances from 
custonicss represent non-refundable contributions for the purpose of offsetting part of the cost of tapping 
01110 [lie sJ8stern. Current year contributions amounted to S 12,600. 

NOTE 6 - CAPITliL 1-EASE ACREEhIENT 

The District entered into a capital lease agreement with the Kentucky Area Developnient District's 
Financing Trust for the amount of S 150,000 on June 1, 1999, for the extension of water lines and for the 
purchase of office equipment and furniture. The econonlic substance of the lease is that the District is 
financing the acquisition of the assets through the lease, and accordingly, the lease was capitalized in the 
District's records. 

Payn~ents are due bi-annually on May 20Ih and November 20Ih until May 20, 2009. 



DEXTER-ALRIO HEIGHTS WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES T O  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL L,EASE AGREEMENT (Continued) 

The follo\ving is a schedule by years of future principal payments required under the lease: 

FY E December 3 1,2006 
f;l'E Llecember 3 1 ,  2007 
FY E December 3 1, 2008 
F I V E  December 3 I ,  2009 
Tilerentier 

Total Debt: S 57,100 

Less Current Portion: --- ( 1  7,200) 
Tot:il L.ong-Term Debt: S 39,900 

SOTE 7 -- LINE O F  CREDIT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

Tl~r  D1stric.1 obtuined a line of credit in the amount of $150,000 from The Murray Bank on December 12, 2005 
for tlic purpow of tir~irl) p;~) irig C O I I S ~ T U C ~ ~ O ~ ~  costs related to the Flint Rd/West Fork Rd Water Main Estension 
projrci Tlie project expenses are being reirrlbursed under a grant from the Keritucky Infrastructure Autl~ority. 
Tlir Line of Credit matures Drcen~ber 15, 2007 and incurs interest at the rate of 5.570 per annum. As of 
D~.crmbrr 3 1, 1005 the balance due on the line of credit was S50.000. 

S O T E  8 - ACCRUED TAXES P.AYABLE 

Accrtted Tales Payable as of December 3 1 ,  2005, consisted of the follo\ving: 

Pa! ~.oli Taxes 
Sales Tnx 
Calloi\,ay County Board of Education 

Total Current Liabilities: 

XOTE 8 - EXTRAORDINARY EXPENSE 

During the prior fiscal year the water district elected to demolish an old water tower that has not been in 
use since the inception of the district in 1964 that has continued to be a liability to the District. The 
S 1.000 expense is the renlairlder cost of demolition (contractual services) and was paid during 2005 after 
satisfactory completion. 
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BY GO VERNltIENT A UDZTZNG STANDARDS 
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REPORT O N  COMPLIANCE A N D  O N  INTERNAL CONTROL, 
OVER FINANCIAL, REPORTING BASED O N  A N  AUDIT O F  

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNhlENT AUDITING ST,4 NDARDS 

To the Col~lnlissio~iers 
Deuter-:\lmo llcights LVatcr District 
Alrno. Kentucky ,12070 

LVe c audited the financial statements of Dexter-Alma Heights Watcr District as of and far the year ended 
Dcccmbcr 3 1, 700i, arid ha! e issued our report thereon dated hlarch 74, 2006. Mfe conducted our audit in 
accordance \\ ith United States generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained In Go\ c>t. t lrr l~~rtc  .41r(ilfi11g S~ut~ilurrls, issued by the Comptroller General of  the United States. 

:\s p;lrr ot~obtaining reasonable assurance about whcthcr Dexter-.'ilmo tieights \{later District's financial 
statc~l~ents are free of  nlatcrial misstatement, \ve performeti tests of its coniplinnce \\.it11 certain provisions of 
I;!\\ s. rcg~~I;ltions. colltracts and grants, noncompliance \\.it11 \i hich could have a direct and material effect on 
tile dctcrnlination of  financial statement aniounts. Ho\\e\"er, pro\.iding an opinion on conipliance \vith those 
pro\ isioris \\,as not an objcctivc of our audit and, accordingly, \ve do not espress such an opinion. The results 
ol'our tcsts cliscloscd no instances of  noncompliance that arc required to be reported under Gor.c!rr~nrcnl 

, 4 l l ~ i l ~ l l l ~  . S ~ ~ l 1 1 ~ / ' 1 ~ ~ 0 ~ ~  

Intcrn;~l Control O\,cr Financial Re13orting 

In planning and perfornlitlg our audit, tvc considered Dexter-Alrno Heights Water District's internal control 
01 cr financial reporting in order to deternline our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our 
consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters i n  the 
internal control over financial reporting that niight be niaterial \\~eaknesses. A material \vcakness is a 
condition in hich the design or operation of one or niorc of the internal control components does not reduce 
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatenients in amounts that would be material in relation to the 
financial statements being audited niay occur and not be detected within a tiriiely period by eniployees in the 
nornial course of perforniing their assigned functions. We noted no instances involving the internal control 
over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

This report is intended for the information of the board of directors and management. However, this report is a 
nlatter of public record and its distribution is not limited. 

Pierce & Associates, PLLC 
Certified P ~ ~ b l i c  Accountants 

March 24, 2006 


